Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai

Lleoliad: | gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2, Senedd Manon George

Dyddiad: Dydd lau, 5 Rhagfyr 2024 Clerc y Pwyllgor

Amser: 09.30 0300 200 6565

SeneddTai@senedd.cymru

3.1

3.2

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat
09.15 - 09.30

Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau
09.30

Ymchwiliad i ré6l, llywodraethiant ac atebolrwydd y sector
cynghorau tref a chymuned - sesiwn dystiolaeth gydag

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol a Thai

09.30 - 10.45 (Tudalennau 1 - 31)
Jayne Bryant MS, Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol a Thai,
Llywodraeth Cymru

Kevin Griffiths, Pennaeth Polisi Patrneriaethau Llywodraeth Leol, Llywodraeth
Cymru

Lisa James, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr Is-adran Polisi Llywodraeth Leol,

Llywodraeth Cymru

Papurau i'w nodi
10.45 (Tudalen 32)
Llythyr gan Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol a Thai ynghylch
asedau cymunedol

(Tudalennau 33 - 36)
Gohebiaeth gan Cwmpas gyda gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn dilyn y cyfarfod ar
14 Tachwedd

(Tudalen 37)

"(’% Senedd Cymru

Welsh Parliament



3.3

3.4

Gohebiaeth gan Platfform mewn perthynas a Chyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth
Cymru ar gyfer 2025-26

(Tudalennau 38 - 71)
Llythyr gan Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru gyda gwybodaeth
ychwanegol mewn perthynas a'r ymchwiliad i r6l, llywodraethiant ac
atebolrwydd y sector cynghorau tref a chymuned yng Nghymru

(Tudalennau 72 - 74)

Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog Rhif 17.42(ix) i benderfynu gwahardd

y cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod
10.45

Egwyl
10.45 - 10.55

Cyfarfod preifat
10.45 - 14.30

Ymchwiliad i r6l, llywodraethiant ac atebolrwydd y sector
cynghorau tref a chymuned - Ystyried tystiolaeth a materion

allweddol
10.55 -11.35

Blaenraglen Waith
11.35-11.55 (Tudalennau 75 - 89)

Cydsyniad deddfwriaethol: Bil Hawliau Rhentwyr - adroddiad

drafft
11.55-12.10 (Tudalennau 90 - 107)

Egwyl
12.10 - 13.00



8 Darparu safleoedd ar gyfer cymunedau Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr

- Digwyddiad preifat i randdeiliaid
13.00 - 14.30



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42 E |te m 2

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1



Papur 1/ Paper 1 B> o
Llywodraeth Cymru %

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ymchwiliad i Rol,
Llywodraethu ac Atebolrwydd
y Sector Cynghorau Cymuned
a Thref

Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Dai
a Llywodraeth Leol.

15/11/2024

Croesawafy cyfle i ddarparu tystiolaeth i gefnogi ymchwiliad y
Pwyllgor i Rol, Llywodraethu ac Atebolrwydd y Sector Cynghorau
Cymuned a Thref.

Fel Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Dai a Llywodraeth Leol, mae
canfyddiadau'r ymchwiliad hwn o ddiddordeb mawr i mi, ac edrychaf
ymlaen at gael y cyfle i drafod y pwnc hwn ymhellach gyda’r Pwyllgor
yny cyfarfod ddydd lau 5 Rhagfyr.

wWww.llyw.cymru Tudalen y pecyn 21




Cynnwys

1. RAl a gwerth cynghorau cymuned a thref yng Nghymru....... 3
Y sector cynghorau cymuned a thref e, 3

2. Ayw'rsectorynaddasi'r diben mewn tirwedd llywodraeth leol

sy’'n esblygu 5
3. Trefniadau llywodraethu a chraffu.......c..ceeceeceecsccsscsscsssscsssces 7
YIMNYTTAQU oo 8

4. Cwmpas technoleg ddigidol a thechnoleg newydd i wella'r
broses o wneud penderfyniadau, darparu gwasanaethau a chymryd
rhan mewn prosesau democrataidd lleol 9

5. Addefnyddir pwerau a chyfrifoldebau newydd ar gyfer yr haen
hon o lywodraeth i gefnogi cymunedau.........eececceecsnccssesssscsssccses 10

B.  ClOh.eeeeeeeeeeeccccsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses n

Tudaleny pecyn 22



1. R&l a gwerth cynghorau cymuned a thref
yng Nghymru

Y sector cynghorau cymuned a thref

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi comisiynu adolygiadau blaenorol i awgrymu ffyrdd y
gallai cynghorau cymuned a thref gyflawni eu potensial.

Yn 2003, cafodd Prifysgol Aberystwyth ei chomisiynu gan Lywodraeth Cymru i gynnal
ymchwil i rél, swyddogaethau a photensial cynghorau cymuned yng Nghymruyny
dyfodol. Roedd yr adroddiad hwn yn argymell sicrhau bod cynghorau cymuned yn gallu
gwneud mwy drwy gael hyfforddiant gwell, rolau cliriach, a mwy o bwerau i ddarparu
gwasanaethau’'n lleol.

Ers hynny, mae adroddiad Aberystwyth wedi llywio amryw o ddatblygiadau polisi, gan
gynnwys Mesur Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2011, a oedd yn ceisio cryfhau rél a galluoedd
cynghorau cymuned. Dilynwyd hyn gan astudiaeth bellach yn 2014 i ddiweddaru'r
canfyddiadau hyn.

Yn 2017, comisiynwyd Panel Adolygu Annibynnol i edrych eto ar rél bosibl cynghorau
cymuned. Gwnaeth nifer o argymhellion i gael eu hystyried a'u rhoi ar waith, nid yn unig
ar gyfer Llywodraeth Cymru, ond ar gyfer nifer o sectorau. Mae llawer o gamau
gweithredu Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cael eu cwblhau, er enghraifft, rydym wedi
darparu pwer cymhwysedd cyffredinol i gynghorau cymuned cymwys, mae adolygiad o
ffiniau ar y gweill, ac rydym wedi rhoi dyletswydd ar gynghorau i gyhoeddi adroddiadau
blynyddol.

Fodd bynnag, mae rhai o'r prif faterion sy'n dal heb eu trin a'u trafod yn cynnwys:

e A oesbudd mewn diffinio'r gwasanaethau a fyddai'n cael eu darparu gan
gynghorau cymuned a thref;

e A ddylai cynghorwyr allu eistedd ar gynghorau cymuned a chynghorau sir, hynny
yw, ‘cynghorwyr a dwy het’,

e Aidim ondam uchafswm o un tymor y dylai cynghorwyr allu cael eu cyfethol;

e Addylai fod yn ofynnol i bob clerc fod yn gymwys; ac

e A ddylai Gweinidogion gael pwerau ymyrryd cymesur.,

Mae swyddogion wedi ymchwilio i'r rhain gyda phartneriaid ac nid ydynt wedi dod i
gonsensws ar y ffordd ymlaen. Er enghraifft, mae unrhyw gyfyngiadau ynghylch
cynghorwyr a dwy het neu gyfyngiadau cyfethol yn codi pryder ynghylch cyfyngu ary
gronfa o gynghorwyr sydd ar gael. Byddai'n ddymunol gofyn i glercod fod yn gymwys,
ond mae gwrthwynebiad i hyn o ran faint o glercod fyddai'n gallu neu’'n fodlon cyflawni'r
cymhwyster, ar adeg pan fo'n anodd weithiau recriwtio clercod. Felly, mae Llywodraeth
Cymru wedi blaenoriaethu’r camau gweithredu hynny sy'n helpu i wneud y sector yn
fwy cadarn ac yn gwella ei enw da, gyda'r bwriad o ddychwelyd at yr argymhellion hyn
yn ddiweddarach.

Ym mis Ebrill 2023, sefydiwyd Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen Gweinidogol ar lechyd
Democrataidd i edrych ar ffyrdd o wella ymwybyddiaeth ac ymgysylitiad rhwng
cymunedau a'u cynghorau cymuned, a chynyddu nifer ac amrywiaeth yr ymgeiswyr sy'n

Tudalenzy pecyn 23



sefyll mewn etholiadau. Cyhoeddwyd eu hadroddiad ar 13 Tachwedd 2024. Dros y
misoedd nesaf, byddaf yn ystyried yr opsiynau sydd yn eu hadroddiad yn ofalus, ochr yn
ochr a chanlyniad ymchwiliad y Senedd hon a'r adroddiad sydd ar y gweill gan Archwilio
Cymru ar lywodraethu ariannol yn y sector.

Tudaleny pecyn 24



2. Ayw'r sector yn addas i'r diben mewn
tirwedd llywodraeth leol sy'n esblygu

Ac ystyried yr amrywiaeth enfawr yn y sector, ac nad yw’'n darparu gwasanaethau
statudol, mae’'n anodd rhoi sylwadau ar addasrwydd cyffredinol i'r diben.

Fodd bynnag, mae'r Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen ar lechyd Democrataidd wedi edrych yn
fanylach ar ffactorau sy’'n effeithio ar y graddau y mae cymunedau’'n ymwybodol o'u
cyngor tref neu gyngor cymuned ac yn gweithio gyda nhw.

Comisiynwyd y grwp yn dilyn etholiadau llywodraeth leol yn 2022 Ile mai dim ond 22%
o'r 7,883 o seddi a gafodd eu herio. Roedd 62% o'r seddi heb eu hymladd — sy’'n golygu na
chafodd etholiad ei gynnal —ac roedd 16% o'r seddi heb eu llenwi ar y cychwyn.
Canfuwyd nad oedd y rhan fwyaf o aelodau’r cyhoedd yn ymwybodol o'u cyngor neu eu
bod yn cymysgu rhwng y cynghorau hynny a'r prif gyngor.

Canfuwyd y canlynol:

¢ Mae iechyd democrataidd yn wael.

e Nid yw llywodraethu'n ddigon cadarn ar gyfer sefydliadau sy'n codi trethi ac yn
gwario arian cyhoeddus. Mae'r sector yn codi dros £50 miliwn mewn praesept,
ond nid yw'r dystiolaeth o'i effaith a'i werth am arian yn glir. Yn gyffredinol, cafodd
tua 50% o gynghorau farn amodol gan archwilydd yn 2022-23. Mae gan y sector
swm tebyg. Hynny yw, dros £50 miliwn mewn cronfeydd wrth gefn.

e Mae'rdiben yn aneglur ac yn anghyson. Nid oes gweledigaeth na strategaeth glir
ar gyfer diben y sector, a sut y mae'n cyd-fynd a phartneriaid eraill megis prif
gynghorau neu'r trydydd sector.

e Nid yw'r sector yn mwynhau perthynas iach gyda'i gymunedau a'i bartneriaid. Nid
yw'r rhan fwyaf o aelodau’'r cyhoedd yn gwybod beth mae cynghorau cymuned
yn ei wneud, na phwy yw eu cynghorwyr.

e Roeddygrwp yn ei chael hi'n anodd cael ymateb gan y cyhoedd, mudiadau'r
trydydd sector, y prif gynghorau a'r cynghorau cymuned eu hunain, ar y materion
hyn, a dywedodd fod y difaterwch, ynddo'i hun yn ganfyddiad sy'n peri pryder.

e Yn gyffredinol, mae integreiddio neu weithio gyda phartneriaid yn wael, gan
gynnwys rhwng cynghorau. Mae enghreifftiau o weithio gyda chynghorau eraill
neu nifer sylweddol y gwirfoddolwyr cymunedol yn brin. Collir cyflecedd i
harneisio egni, sgiliau ac adnoddau’r bobl sy'n poeni am eu cymunedau ac sy'n
awyddus i wneud gwahaniaeth.

Mae'r grwp wedi darparu dwy set o opsiynau ar gyfer mynd i'r afael 8'u canfyddiadau. |
grynhoi, y rhain yw:

e Buddsoddi'n sylweddol mewn codi proffil a sicrhau bod diwylliant strwythur y
cynghorau cymuned presennol yn fwy cyfredol; a

e Buddsoddi mewn adolygu a ddylid diweddaru'r model llywodraethu cymunedol
er mwyn iddo fod yn fwy cynrychioliadol ac atyniadol.

Tudalen5y pecyn 25



GCellid hefyd ystyried i ba raddau y mae cynghorau cymuned a thref yn cyflawni eu
dyletswyddau statudol fel mesur o'u haddasrwydd i'r diben. Gosododd Deddf
Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021 ddyletswyddau ar gynghorau cymuned a
threfiwella'r ymgysylltu a'r cyfranogi gyda'u cymunedau.

Fel rhnan o ymarfer mewnol diweddar i brofi i bba raddau y mae'r dyletswyddau hyn wedi
cael eu cyflawni, aeth fy swyddogion ati i adolygu sampl o ychydig dros 500 o wefannau
cynghorau cymuned. Canfuwyd bod 30% wedi cyhoeddi adroddiad blynyddol ar gyfer
2022-23 a bod 33% wedi cyhoeddi cynllun hyfforddi.

Mae'r dystiolaeth mewn perthynas ag iechyd democrataidd y sector a chyflawni
dyletswyddau statudol yn awgrymu bod angen rhagor o ymdrechion i gynyddu capasiti
a gallu cynghorau cymuned i gyflawni.

Tudaleny %ecyn 26



3. Trefniadau llywodraethu a chraffu

Mae pob cyngor cymuned a thref yn gorff corfforedig awtonomaidd, sy'n atebol yn
annibynnol i'w etholwyr. O'r herwydd, nid oes gan Lywodraeth Cymru berthynas
atebolrwydd ag unrhyw gyngor tref neu gymuned.

O'r herwydd, mae cynghorau'n cael eu harchwilio fel awdurdod lleol sy'n codi trethi.
Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru sy'n gyfrifol am y broses i roi sicrwydd i etholwyr bod eu
trethi wedi cael eu codi a'u gwario'n briodol a bod cyfrif priodol amdanynt.

Fel y nodwyd yn flaenorol, mae’'n ofynnol i gynghorau cymuned baratoi a chyhoeddi
cynlluniau hyfforddi i nodi'r hyfforddiant sydd ei angen ar glercod a chynghorwyr i
gyflawni eu dyletswyddau. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi buddsoddi mewn sawl! ffordd i
gefnogi a chymell cynghorau i ddilyn yr hyfforddiant angenrheidiol.

Drwy Un Llais Cymru, rydym wedi darparu bwrsariau hyfforddiant ar gyfer cynghorwyr,
gan ganolbwyntio ar lywodraethu a rheolaeth ariannol. Yn 2023-24, clustnodwyd
£56,000 yn benodol ar gyfer hyfforddiant ar god ymddygiad, llywodraethu a rheolaeth
ariannol. Mae'r hyn a gynigiodd Llywodraeth Cymru a'r symiau a hawliwyd yn Nhab! T.

Tabl 1- Bwrsariau hyfforddiant Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer cynghorwyr

Bwrsari Cynghorwyr 4000 72,500 52400 62000 62,000
(cynnig grant) (£)
Bwrsari Cynghorwyr

: 590 24,447 15,520 33,543 25,392
(hawliwyd) (£)

Hefyd, drwy Gymdeithas Clercod Cynghorau Lleol, rydym wedi darparu ar gyfer
bwrsariau hyfforddiant i glercod, yn bennaf drwy ganolbwyntio ar fwrsariau llawn ar
gyfer Tystysgrif mewn Gweinyddu Cynghorau Lleol (CiLCA). CiLCA yw un o'r
cymwysterau cydnabyddedig i glercod sy'n angenrheidiol i gyngor cymuned allu datgan
ei fod yn gymwys i arfer y pwer cymhwysedd cyffredinol. Yn Nhabl/ 2 dangosir sut mae'r
cronfeydd hyn wedi cael eu defnyddio:

Tabl 2 - Bwrsariau hyfforddiant Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer clercod

evsan CILCA ([gimig 20000 57900 71500 72.000 72.000
grant) (£)
Bwrsari CILCA 7332 19998 38408 25,440 13338
(hawliwyd)

Tudalen Y pecyn 27



O ran annog a hwyluso amrywiaeth, mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gweithio gyda'r
sector i annog Ilif o gynghorwyr newydd.

Mae rhai o'r camau gweithredu’'n cynnwys y canlynol:

e Fewnaethom weithio gydag Un Llais Cymru i ddatblygu fideos hyrwyddo yn nodi
sut y gall cynghorwyr wneud gwahaniaeth;

e Fewnaethom gyflwyno Deddf Etholiadau a Chyrff Etholedig (Cymru) 2024, sy'n ei
gwneud yn ofynnol i Weinidogion Cymru gael cronfa i gefnogi ymgeiswyr anabl i
sefyll am swydd etholedig, gan roi sail ddeddfwriaethol i'r gronfa; a

e Rydym wedi deddfu i'w gwneud yn haws i gynghorwyr cymunedol fynychu
cyfarfodydd o bell.

Ymyriadau

Mae cynghorau cymuned yn atebol i'w cymunedau.

Mae gan Archwilio Cymru rél o ran asesu hyder mewn llywodraethu a rheolaeth ariannol
mewn cynghorau cymuned. Mae gan yr Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus rél o
ran ymateb i gwynion am ymddygiad gwael a chamweinyddu.

Nid yw cynghorau cymuned yn darparu gwasanaethau statudol. Felly, nid oes
dangosyddion cyson ar gyfer perfformiad llwyddiannus neu fethiannau mewn
perfformiad. Mae'n dilyn nad oes proses ar gyfer penderfynu a fyddai, neu pryd fyddai
ymyriad yn briodol, neu sut beth fyddai ymyriad llwyddiannus. Ar ben hynny, gan fod 732
o gynghorau, gallai hyn arwain at oblygiadau o ran adnoddau i Lywodraeth Cymru a'i
phartneriaid o ran monitro a chefnogi unrhyw broses ymyrryd.

Tudaleny gecyn 28



4. Cwmpas technoleg ddigidol a thechnoleg
newydd i wella'r broses o wneud
penderfyniadau, darparu gwasanaethau a
chymryd rhan mewn prosesau
democrataidd lleol

Mae Deddf Comisiwn Democratiaeth a Ffiniau Cymru etc 2013 yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i
gynghorau cymuned gyhoeddi dogfennau penodol ar-lein, hynny yw:

¢ Gwybodaeth gyswllt y cyngor;

e Gwybodaeth am bob aelod o'r cyngor;
e Dogfennau a chofnodion cyfarfodydd; a
e Chofrestr Buddiannau'r Aelodau:

Cafodd dyletswyddau eraill eu cyflwyno yn Neddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau
(Cymru) 20211 helpu i wneud gwaith y cynghorau gyda'u cymunedau a throstynt yn fwy
agored a thryloyw. Mae'n ofynnol i gynghorau cymuned wneud trefniadau ar gyfer
cyfarfodydd sy'n galluogi pobl i gymryd rhan mewn sawl lleoliad. Y gofyniad yw i
unigolion glywed a chael eu clywed.

Yn 2022, comisiynodd Llywodraeth Cymru y Prif Swyddog Digidol ar gyfer Llywodraeth
Leol i baratoi prosiect darganfod digidol i adolygu parodrwydd digidol cynghorau
cymuned a thref. Cafodd yr adroddiad ei gyhoeddi ym mis Mawrth 2023, ac roedd yn
nodi bod amrywiad sylweddol ar draws y sector a bod angen gweithredu i alluogi
cynghorau cymuned i weithio’'n hyderus drwy ddulliau digidol.

Sefydlodd y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol ar y pryd Weithgor lechyd Digidol a
oedd yn cynnwys swyddogion o Un Llais Cymru, CLILC, Cymdeithas Clercod Cynghorau
Lleol, a Llywodraeth Cymru i greu cynllun gweithredu dan arweiniad y sector i fwrw
ymlaen a'r argymhellion. Rydym wedi darparu grantiau hyd at £300,000 i Un Llais
Cymru drosy 2 flynedd ariannol diwethaf, i gefnogi'r gwaith o roi'r cynllun gweithredu ar
waith.

Tudalen Y pecyn 29



5. A ddefnyddir pwerau a chyfrifoldebau
newydd ar gyfer yr haen hon o lywodraeth i
gefnogi cymunedau

Rwyf eisoes wedi myfyrio ar lwyddiant cyflwyno pwerau mewn perthynas & chyhoeddi
cynlluniau hyfforddi ac adroddiadau blynyddol. Rwyf hefyd wedi myfyrio ar sefylifa'r
sector i gyflawni dyletswyddau o ran galluogi cyfarfodydd aml-leoliad.

O ran cyflwyno'r pwer cymhwysedd cyffredinol ar gyfer cynghorau cymuned cymwys,
mae Deddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021 yn gosod yr amodau y mae'n
rhaid i gynghorau cymuned eu bodloni i fod yn ‘gyngor cymuned cymwys’ gyda
mynediad at y Pwer Cymhwysedd Cyffredinol. Dim ond cynghorau sy'n bodloni'r
amodau cymhwysedd sy'n gallu defnyddio'r pwer cyffredinol hwn. Dyma'r meini prawf:

i.  Datganir fod o leiaf ddwy ran o dair o gyfanswm aelodau'r cyngor wedi cael eu
hethol (gan gynnwys yn ddiwrthwynebiad), boed hynny mewn etholiad cyffredin
neu mewn is-etholiad;

ii.  Maegan glercy cyngor gymhwyster neu ardystiad a enwir fel y pennir gan
Weinidogion Cymru drwy reoliadau; a

iii.  Mae dwy farn ddiweddaraf Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru ar gyfrifon y cyngor yn
ddiamod. Mae'n rhaid bod yr un ddiweddaraf wedi'i derbyn yn ystod y 12 mis
blaenorol.

O ymholiadau mewnol, mae swyddogion yn ymwybodol o gynghorau cymuned sydd
wedi datgan eu hunain eu bod yn gymwys, ond nad ydynt eto'n ymwybodol o unrhyw
waith a wnaed gan ddefnyddio’r pwer hwn. Nid ydym wedi cael adborth gan y sector, er
enghraifft, drwy Un Llais Cymru, ar ddefnyddio’r pwer na rhwystrau rhag defnyddio’r
pwer.

Tudaleny %ecyn 30



6. Cloi

Rwy'n edrych ymlaen at glywed barn y Pwyllgor i ategu gwaith y Grwp Gorchwyl a
Gorffen ar lechyd Democrataidd ac Archwilio Cymru.

Bydd yr adroddiadau hyn yn darparu tystiolaeth bwysig i ategu cam nesaf Llywodraeth
Cymru i ddatblygu polisi llywodraethu cymunedol.

Tudalenﬂy pecyn 31



Eitem 3

Y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai

05 Rhagfyr - clawr y papurau i’'w nodi

llywodraethiant ac
atebolrwydd y sector
cynghorau tref a
chymuned

Llywodraeth Leol
Cymru

Rhif y papur Mater Oddi wrth Gweithredu
2 Ymchwiliad i asedau Ysgrifennydd y | nodi
cymunedol Cabinet dros
Lywodraeth Leol a
Thai
3 Ymchwiliad i rol, Cwmpas | nodi
llywodraethiant ac
atebolrwydd y sector
cynghorau tref a
chymuned
4 Cyllideb Ddrafft Platfform | nodi
Llywodraeth Cymru
2025-26
5 Ymchwiliad i rol, Cymdeithas | nodi

Tudalen y pecyn 32




Papur 2 er2
Y Pwyﬁgor/ﬁff;wodraeth Leol Ejrémna 1
a Thai Bae Caerdydd, C y o .
SeneddTai@senedd.cymru
senedd.cymru/SeneddTai
0300 200 6565

Local Government
and Housing Committee

Welsh Parliament
Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN

SeneddHousing@senedd.wales
senedd.wales/SeneddHousing
0300 200 6565

Jayne Bryant AS
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol a Thai
Llywodraeth Cymru

1 Tachwedd 2024
Annwyl Jayne,
Y Comisiwn Asedau Cymunedol

Diolch i chi am eich llythyr dyddiedig 24 Medi, ynghylch y Comisiwn Asedau Cymunedol. Gwnaethom
hefyd drafod y mater hwn a chi yn ystod y sesiwn graffu weinidogol a gynhaliwyd ar 10 Hydref.

Yn ystod y sesiwn honno, gwnaethoch egluro mai griwp gorchwyl a gorffen, yn hytrach na chomisiwn,
fydd yn datblygu'r gwaith hwn. Cytunodd yr Aelodau y dylwn ysgrifennu atoch i fynegi ein barn gref
na ddylai'r newid hwn o ran y dull gweithredu arwain at gwtogi cwmpas y gwaith sy'n cael ei wneud,

gweithredu mewn perthynas a llawer o'r argymhellion a wnaed gennym yn ein hadroddiad ar asedau
cymunedol. Byddwn yn ddiolchgar pe gallech gadarnhau y bydd y grwp gorchwyl a gorffen yn rhoi'r
argymhellion hyn ar waith.

Yn ogystal, pe na bai'r gnwp gorchwyl a gorffen yn rhoi ein hargymhellion ar waith, byddai'r Pwyllgor
yn ddiolchgar i gael diweddariad i'r perwyl hwnnw hefyd.

Roedd argymhelliad 7 yn ein hadroddiad yn datgan ein barn y dylid adolygu'r astudiaethau achos a
gafodd eu darparu gan Ystadau Cymru yn achlysurol, a hynny er mwyn sicrhau bod enghreifftiau
diweddar o brosiectau ar gael, fel y gall eraill ddysgu gwersi yn eu cylch. Mae'r diweddariad a gafwyd
ym mis Tachwedd 2023 yn cyfeirio at gylchlythyr a chynhadledd flynyddol Ystadau Cymru. Serch
hynny, rwy’'n nodi nad yw'r astudiaethau achos a gyhoeddwyd ar wefan Llywodraeth Cymru wedi'u
diweddaru ers 2019. Gallai fod yn ddefnyddiol pe bai'r prosiectau y cyfeiriwyd atynt yn y diweddariad
ym mis Tachwedd 2023, ynghyd ag unrhyw enghreifftiau dilynol, yn cael eu cyhoeddi ar y wefan.

Mae'r diweddariad ym mis Tachwedd yn nodi bod y gwaith o sefydlu rhwydwaith cymheiriaid ar gyfer
trosglwyddo asedau, yn unol ag argymhelliad 8 yn ein hadroddiad, yn mynd rhagddo, ac yn dweud

'f% Senedd Cymru Tudalen y pecyn 33

Welsh Parliament


https://busnes.senedd.cymru/documents/s142063/Papur%208.pdf
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/documents/s142063/Papur%208.pdf

bod y gwaith hwn yn rhan o adolygiad ehangach o Ystadau Cymru. Byddai'r Pwyllgor yn ddiolchgar i
gael diweddariad am y broses o sefydlu rhwydwaith o'r fath.

Yn gywir

o

John Griffiths AS
Cadeirydd
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu yn Saesneg.

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English.

‘F/ Senedd Cymru Tudaleny pecyn 34

Welsh Parliament



4

7
Jayne Bryant AS/MS f’} ﬁ\(

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol a Thai '\/ J(
Cabinet Secretary for Housing and Local Government J ./JA

Llywodraeth Cymru
John Griffiths AS Welsh Government
Cadeirydd

Y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai

John.Griffiths@senedd.cymru

20 Tachwedd 2024
Annwyl John,

Diolch am eich llythyr dyddiedig 4 Tachwedd ynghylch y Comisiwn Asedau Cymunedol a'r
sesiwn graffu weinidogol a gynhaliwyd ar 10 Hydref.

Hoffwn gadarnhau nad yw'r dull presennol wedi arwain at unrhyw ostyngiad yng nghwmpas
y gwaith sy’n cael ei wneud. Mae argymhellion a dderbyniwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru, fel
y'u dogfennir gan yr ymateb ffurfiol a anfonwyd atoch ym mis Tachwedd 2023, yn cael eu
datblygu yn weithredol gan y griwp gorchwyl a gorffen. Er gwybodaeth ichi, rwyf wedi
cynnwys dolen at y cylch gorchwyl: Cylch gorchwyl: Grnwvp Gorchwyl a Gorffen, Asedau
Cymunedol: Ystadau Cymru | LLYW.CYMRU

O ran yr argymhellion i adolygu'r canllawiau, rwy'n falch o'ch hysbysu y bydd y rhain yn cael
sylw yn dilyn adroddiad y griwp gorchwyl a gorffen, ac y byddant yn cael eu hymgorffori yn 'y
canllawiau diweddaraf yn unol &'r adroddiad a chyfarwyddebau Gweinidogol. Bydd y dull
hwn yn golygu y bydd cynrychiolwyr grwpiau cymunedol wedi cael cyfle drwy weithdai'r
Comisiwn i gyfrannu at ddatblygu'r canllawiau diweddaraf.

Mae swyddogion yn cydnabod pwysigrwydd cael yr astudiaethau achos diweddaraf ar gael
i'r cyhoedd gyfeirio atynt. Mae cyhoeddi astudiaethau achos ar LLYW.CYMRU yn wir yn
gam adeiladol ymlaen. Mae swyddogion eisoes yn cydlynu gyda thim cyfathrebu
Llywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau bod yr astudiaethau achos diweddaraf ar gael yn rhwydd ar
wefan Ystadau Cymru.

O ran yr argymhelliad i sefydlu Rhwydwaith Cymbheiriaid Trosglwyddo Asedau, mae
Ystadau Cymru wedi ffurfio griwp thematig Asedau Cymunedol a Gwerth Cymdeithasol ac
mae aelodau wrthi'n datblygu cylch gorchwyl. Bydd y rhain yn cynnwys ffyrdd o rannu
profiad cymheiriaid ac arferion gorau.

Mae eich adborth yn werthfawr, a nod swyddogion yw ei ymgorffori yn ein gwaith parhaus.

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:
0300 0604400

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay Gohebiaeth.Jayne.Bryant@llyw.cymru
Caerdydd « Cardiff Correspondence.Jayne.Bryant@gov.Wales
CF99 1SN

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth Gymraeg sy'n dod i law yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in wam.ﬂ%l@&%&@@héﬂﬁﬁwash will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Jayne.Bryant@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Jayne.Bryant@gov.Wales
mailto:John.Griffiths@senedd.wales
https://www.llyw.cymru/ystadau-cymru/cylch-gorchwyl-grwp-gorchwyl-gorffen-asedau-cymunedol
https://www.llyw.cymru/ystadau-cymru/cylch-gorchwyl-grwp-gorchwyl-gorffen-asedau-cymunedol
https://www.llyw.cymru/ystadau-cymru/cylch-gorchwyl-grwp-gorchwyl-gorffen-asedau-cymunedol
https://www.llyw.cymru/ystadau-cymru/cylch-gorchwyl-grwp-gorchwyl-gorffen-asedau-cymunedol

Yn gywir,

Dorgacoerc

Jayne Bryant AS/IMS
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol a Thai
Cabinet Secretary for Housing and Local Government

Tudalen y pecyn 36



Papur 3 / Paper 3

Eitem 3.2

Here is a link to the report we put together for Vale of Glamorgan Council on Town and
Community Councils that was requested by the committee. Itis in the public domain as part of
this report published by the Local Authority, pages 46-55.

Reshaping Programme Strengthening Communities

Best wishes,

Dan

Dr Daniel Roberts

Swyddog Polisi ac Ymgysylltu | Policy and Engagement Officer

T: 03001115050 M: 07435552966 W: cwmpas.coop

Sbarc, Heol Maendy, Caerdydd, CF24 4HQ | Spark, Maindy Road, Cardiff, CF24 4HQ

Ysgrifennwch ataf yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg

wW as

For economic and social change
Creu newid economaidd a chymdeithasol

Tudalen y pecyn 37


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.valeofglamorgan.gov.uk%2FDocuments%2F_Committee%2520Reports%2FCabinet%2F2024%2F24-09-19%2FReshaping-Programme-Strengthening-Communities.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Cseneddhousing%40senedd.wales%7C0a3c5eb1b3264482876b08dd0e2b1d63%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C638682303259108503%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lAEE5xkjRd593g13WdmiEQZ9bRHrshcAJmXLSoAvphg%3D&reserved=0

Papur 4 / Paper 4 Platfform For mental health

E Ite I I I 3 3 Head Office and social change
- Beaufort House, Beaufort Road Dros iechyd meddwl
Swansea a newid cymdeithasol
SA6 8JG

olivertownsend@platfform.org
platfform.org

Dear Members of the Senedd Finance Committee,

Last year, we wrote to you (Platfform, 2023) raising our serious concerns
about the future sustainability of our sector. Then, we were reaching a
point of no return for our services. We know that this was impacting many
parts of the public sector as well, but we specifically focused on the
realities of the challenges facing the third sector, particularly within
housing. We also used that opportunity to describe the work that takes
place within housing support services. These services are still, too often,
not recognised by our wider society for the huge supporting role they play
within people’s lives — and on other services more widely. We wanted to
demonstrate clearly how fundamental housing is, in its role as a public ORM
service.

This year, we remain in a state of concern for the future. It is becoming
clearer every year that passes that a state of ‘permacrisis’ has become
the new status quo. There are very significant risks to that, not least the
prioritisation of crisis funding, or short-term, in-year savings as opposed to
strategic, whole-systems change. Continued prioritisation of crisis
spending, whilst understandable, will do nothing to address the needs of
people on the edge of crisis, let alone beginning to meet the needs of the
‘missing middle’ (2018)?. Indeed, with continued funding pressures, local
services’ criteria for support become stricter, the level of need much more
pronounced, and without a clear shift towards prevention, we are looking
at eventual public sector collapse.

Our response this year will attempt to demonstrate the ways in which the
third sector is helping reduce demand for key devolved sectors such as
housing, the NHS and local authorities, alongside reducing demand for
non-devolved sectors such as criminal justice. The reason for this, is that
we have a clear opportunity, as a devolved nation, to capitalize on the
recent UK budget with £1.7bn of consequential funding coming to Wales.

In our response we have also drawn out the clear impact that financial
decisions made in the budget this year will have on key government
priorities such as waiting lists. However, we are also clear that focusing on
these reductive, simplistic messages does not capture the complexity of
the challenges facing Wales today. We need our politicians to be bold and
visionary for the future of Wales, and to resist the temptation before an
election to focus solely on one area of policy.

1 Although the term ‘missing middle’ refers to children and young people, the concept
itself can be applied equally to the adult population, who are expected by the system to
reach a certain level of need or crisis before ‘qualifying’ for support.

Platfform is the trading name of Platfform for Change — Registered in England and;l;gdalen y pecyn 38 P lAT

Company number: 02546880 — Registered charity number: 1000889



FORM

PLATF

Continued

The UK Government has ‘front-loaded’ public spending in the recent
budget to a “remarkable” extent, according to the Institute for Fiscal
Studies (2024). Those spending commitments are expected to level off by
the third year, which means that longer-term spending decisions, with the
potential to make wide-ranging structural changes over the next five
years, must be made now. We understand that there will be a temptation,
however well-intentioned, to drastically increase revenue spending on the
NHS in response to the challenges on waiting lists. However, we are
unequivocal that this would be a strategic mistake.

We are clear that the next Welsh Government budget must allocate
capital funding in the most focused and disciplined way that it can. We
recognise that there will be significant pressure to deliver economic
growth, and at the same time understand the serious challenges facing
our NHS and other sectors. In our view, every £1 allocated in spending by
Welsh Government in the forthcoming budget must generate maximal
value both economically and socially. We explore that idea further below
and use the example of how capital spending on social housing could
reduce the huge revenue spending pressures of temporary
accommodation. However, as well as directly reducing the unsustainable
revenue spending by local government on temporary accommodation,
good social housing is a key component of creating the right conditions for
mental wellbeing. Consistent evidence has demonstrated that addressing
the social determinants of our mental health such as poor-quality housing
(or lack of housing altogether) can prevent mental health worsening. It is
event prevalent within the mental health estate, which we explore further
below.

We are also clear that our revenue spending must be equally focused and
disciplined. There are many significant challenges facing the third sector
(not least of which is the recent National Insurance increase for
employers), and more widely public services across Wales. It would be a
mistake to consider an increase in funding from the UK Government as an
opportunity to return to ‘business as usual’.

We would also want to remind the Committee, that the same crisis in
recruitment and retention has not gone away. Last year’s increase to the
Housing Support Grant was very welcome. But those same pressures are
rearing their heads again, and we hope that the Welsh Government will
continue to prioritise that funding stream. It remains a powerful example of
government working differently in a devolved nation, and we remain the
only UK nation that has maintained an equivalent programme. When we

Tudalen y pecyn 39



FORM

PLATF

Continued

compare to England, for example, their Supporting People Programme
has long since faded into history. We are lucky in Wales, but it remains a
source of strain and concern that this funding needs to be fought for every
year. We hope that this can be addressed soon, so that our sector can
have the certainty it needs to provide support.

Summary and Recommendations

Our key priorities and recommendations are set out below, as to how
Welsh Government can deliver a budget to begin turning around over a
decade of under-investment at a Westminster level. Some of the major
challenges facing Wales are deeply entrenched at a structural level, and
those inbuilt weaknesses require a focus and high level of capital
spending to address.

We call on Welsh Government to:

Prioritise spending that makes long-term, preventative
decisions, by:

1: Recognising that the social determinants of our mental health such as
availability and quality of housing, good quality employment, connected
communities and so on are key factors in reducing mental health needs
across Wales.

2: Committing to prioritising public spending that tackles entrenched systemic
barriers to addressing the social determinants of mental health.

3: Focusing public spending using a ‘maximal effectiveness test’ that meets
key priorities:

a) Does this spending generate employment opportunities locally or
through the supply chain, in Wales?

b) Does this spending help reduce revenue costs in the short term?

c) Does this spending help reduce revenue costs in the longer-term?

d) Does this spending help tackle the social determinants of mental
and physical health?

e) Does this spending help create connected, safe and healthy
communities?

f) Does this spending reduce our carbon / environmental footprint?

g) Does this meet the ambitions of our Welsh legislation — the
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act, the Housing (Wales)
Act, and the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act?

Tudalen y pecyn 40



FORM

PLATF

Continued

4: Declaring a National Mission for social housing construction, allocating the
majority of capital spending over the remaining Senedd term and beyond for
this purpose, to address crippling temporary accommodation costs, and
prepare Wales to be the first nation in the UK to offer a universal Right to
Housing (Tai Pawb, 2024). This would help tackle the utterly unsustainable
rise in costs to local government that have already increase from £41m
per annum in 2020/21, to £99m in 2023/24. We need the Welsh Government
to get meet the £580 - £740m recommended as needed in additional capital
investment (Audit Wales, 2024).

5: Allocating capital funding for a community regeneration fund, aimed at our
most deprived and disconnected communities with high ‘adverse community
experiences’, using participatory budgeting as the allocation model.

6: Allocating capital funding that addresses the parlous quality of the mental
health estate, to ensure inpatient settings can guarantee a physical
environment that is safe, healthy and healing.

Address risks to the third sector, by:

7: Committing to a two-year budget deal so that the third sector can have
stability and more clarity about the future financial environment.

8: Committing spending to meeting the cost incurred to charities as a result of
the National Insurance changes, to ensure that the third sector and local
government do not have to shoulder this additional cost.

9: Committing to expedite any funding decisions by ensuring local government
pass any increase in funding to commissioned providers rapidly and as close
to the settlement as possible.

10: Ensuring that the increases in National Living Wage (NLW) are met in this
budget, allowing local government to commission services at minimum, on the
NLW rate, and ideally at the Real Living Wage (RLW) rate. Begin working
towards setting the RLW as the rate at which all public sector contracts are
procured — for whatever contract, including cleaning, maintenance, support,
care and more.

Tudalen y pecyn 41



FORM

PLATF

Continued

Protect Welsh innovation in Housing Support and
explore applying this approach elsewhere, by:

11: Increasing the funding for the Housing Support Grant, recognising the outsize
impact (Fury, Lynn Montes and Taylor, 2020) that the grant has on public spending:
£1.40 for every £1 spent on average; but also to recognise the huge positive impact
on health spending (£4.50 on every £1 spent, for the NHS specifically).

12: Create an equivalent ring-fenced grant (a “Mental Health Waiting List Prevention
and Support Grant”) that works on the same preventative basis as the Housing
Support Grant, creating the ability for third sector organisations and others to explore
preventative ways forward alongside the NHS mental health system.

Prioritise spending that makes long-term,
preventative decisions

We cannot waste the opportunities of additional funding from
Westminster, and whilst there will be many organisations asking for
funding, Wales will not benefit from a sticking-plaster, or ‘patching up’
budget. Instead, it will require focus, alongside an innovative and
integrated approach, so that as much capital spending as possible meets
as many priorities as possible. We would frame this as a “maximal?
effectiveness test” for capital spending. All too often, spending decisions
are made purely in terms of growth, with the hope that increase revenue
will flow as a result. What this does, however, is reduce the capacity
within government to tackle long-standing structural challenges that
actively create revenue costs for government. On that basis, we have
proposed the following questions for government to consider when
preparing their budget:

a) Does this spending generate employment opportunities locally
or through the supply chain, in Wales?

b) Does this spending help reduce revenue costs in the short
term?

c) Does this spending help reduce revenue costs in the longer-
term?

d) Does this spending help tackle the social determinants of
mental and physical health?

2 We use “maximal” here, as it is not possible to fully identify which options could (if any
could) achieve a “maximum” effectiveness.

Tudalen y pecyn 42



FORM

PLATF

Continued

e) Does this spending help create connected, safe and healthy
communities?

f) Does this spending reduce our carbon / environmental
footprint?

g) Does this meet the ambitions of our Welsh legislation — the
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act, the Housing
(Wales) Act, and the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales)
Act?

We want this ‘test’ be applied to capital spending commitments in the
forthcoming Welsh Government budget.

There are specific areas where we believe capital investment will achieve
maximal effectiveness, but it requires the Welsh Government to carefully
prioritise their spending. We are making this argument, because one of
the most significant challenges facing government finances is the growing
revenue spending, particularly for local government. We have argued
previously (Platfform, 2023) for a “prevention line” to be set up in budgets.
This builds on the long-standing and widespread understanding that
public spending, to achieve value for money, requires a “parallel system”
to run. One that can meet crisis need, whilst not neglecting prevention. In
recent years, certainly since 2010, if not before, the funding for
preventative activity has been consistently deprioritised in favour of crisis
spending. Even ostensibly preventative budgets such as Housing Support
Grant are increasingly preventing crises from worsening, rather than
preventing the crisis itself. Without a change in direction, we do not see a
solution emerging, or any stability for people in crisis. We are essentially
committed to “crisis maintenance”. It doesn’t have to be this way, and for
the first time in over a decade the Welsh Government could take urgent
action to tackle this vicious cycle of false logic that our public services find
themselves in. Putting it simply: our public services cannot continue to
prioritise crisis spending, without making significant strides towards
building an effective preventative system.

The additional capital spending available for Welsh Government this year
must be used in a maximally effective / prudent way, to unlock greater
revenue spending in future years. If this opportunity is not grasped now,
we will have much more difficult challenges to overcome very soon,
especially by 2030.

We have identified several specific areas where significant capital invest
would deliver against the “maximal effectiveness test” idea above.

Tudalen y pecyn 43



FORM

PLATF

Continued

Example: Temporary accommodation: a widening,
deepening money sink that makes people’s lives
fundamentally worse

Temporary accommodation is not a trauma-informed approach and is
actively harmful for people trapped within the housing system (Bevan
Foundation, 2024). Whilst there are temporary accommodation providers
who work incredibly hard, and whilst many organisations, Platfform
included, provide tenancy or floating support for people in temporary
accommodation which makes a difference, the environment and lack of
stability that comes with a placement in temporary accommodation does
not create the conditions people need to recover, rebuild and reset.
Connection to others, rather than isolation, is what is needed to be well,
and temporary accommodation essentially stores up, or worsens, the
trauma and chaos of homelessness and entrenches that trauma for the
future.

It also comes with a crippling cost to local government, and it looks to be
increasing at an alarming rate. Shelter Cymru (2024) figures show
temporary accommodation spending of over £41 million in 2020/21. This
has risen to over £99 million in 2023/24. This rise in costs is
unsustainable. It is another growing financial pressure that local
authorities are increasingly holding, which curtails their ability to fund
preventative services or meet housing needs effectively or safely. Without
urgent and significant action on temporary accommodation, these costs
will only rise — they are cumulative, as the numbers of people needing
temporary accommodation are rising every year.

We need a new National Mission for Wales, targeted relentlessly on
building social housing, and we need a Welsh Government that is
determined and focused on delivering it, whilst providing the
resources to accomplish it.

Our argument is that an urgent investment of a majority of the capital
budget into social housing will not only begin reducing the financial impact
of temporary accommodation in the medium to longer-term (freeing local
authorities up to invest that revenue in other services), but it will also
generate employment within the construction industry, and other related
industries. It also helps to reduce the burden of rent costs on the wider
population, helping impact positively on the cost-of-living crisis, and
reducing the mental health impacts from poverty and the struggle to live
within means. Wales could make very real strides towards making social

Tudalen y pecyn 44



FORM

PLATF

Continued

housing a viable tenure for low-to-average income citizens within the next
five / ten years.

We also wanted to clarify further, that as well as the costs to local
authorities in terms of temporary accommodation payments, there are
additional cost implications for the wider housing sector, where
traumatising impact of long temporary accommodation stays, which are
posing dramatic, and massive challenges for our organisations. Phil
Richardson, Platfform's Deputy Director of Operations, said:

Without doubt, our Supported Housing teams throughout South
Wales have experienced significantly higher levels of
dangerous behaviour from the overwhelmed and traumatised
people we are housing. Within the six months from April -
September 2024, we had surpassed previous annual totals
for all previous years in terms of arrears, abandonments,
serious anti-social behaviour incidents, physical and
sexual assaults and legal proceedings within the Renting
Homes Wales parameters. This comes with huge emotional
costs to the people we support, especially those where every
other option other than eviction has been exhausted. Just as
worrying, support is frequently diverted away from other
residents to deal with crisis situations, meaning that needs can
be harder to meet, causing further distress resulting in
connection seeking through often harmful behaviours and a
vicious cycle starts to emerge. The pressures also impact
emotionally on our staff, who must navigate these difficult
situations and who attempt to do so in an ethical, trauma-
informed way despite the very real risks on all sides.

There are also significant financial costs not just to social
landlords, but also to support providers in terms of drops on
income due to bad debt and arrears, but also in terms of the
resource needed to deal with the challenge. We must also
recognise the costs to local authorities. In addition to the
existing temporary accommodation costs, the need for
increased support, the potential increase in homelessness due
to eviction, all carry significant costs. Again, these are in
addition fo the figures for temporary accommodation found by
Shelter Cymru and represent the continuation of a vicious
cycle of spiralling need and costs.

Tudalen y pecyn 45



FORM

PLATF

Continued

We believe a significant reason for this massive upturn this
year is in part due to the high numbers stuck in temporary
accommodation. Often people are going in as what could be
termed as having ‘low/medium’' needs. However, lengthy time
spent living alongside trauma, in a space that can be chaotic,
with no sense of physical security or psychological safety, is
only going to lead to one outcome: further distress. When
eventually people can be moved into Supported
Accommodation, the trauma and experiences they have
accumulated result in higher levels of distress and often a
complex web of coping mechanisms they have adopted to
cope with this.

This has a further impact on the ability of services to offer
tailored, personalised services. Again, we fully understand and
have huge empathy for local government and their critical need
to house people, but the pressure on social housing allocation
means providers cannot exercise any influence over the mix of
needs people have within a project. To provide excellent
support, there needs to be a mix of needs, to minimise the
presence of chaos or disruption. It is not possible, on the staff
structures afforded through funding at present, to meet the
needs of all residents in supported housing, if the combination
of needs is not considered. For example, we would usually try
to minimise the occurrences of someone using substances to
cope with trauma, being housed with someone who is on a
long-term recovery journey but who is vulnerable to going back
to that as a response. As providers, our staff understand the
needs of people very well, and their ability to influence or guide
placements into supported accommodation has been severely
curtailed by necessity.

This also goes hand in hand with needing sometimes to
support people who we do not have the agency or power to
appropriately support, often with limited support from statutory
services who would previously have intervened (for example,
see recent changes to policing around Right Care, Right
Person). We are seeing sectors we interface with on a reqular
basis in states of overwhelm, unable to provide the help and
support previously offered to the people we support.

To put it simply: temporary accommodation is becoming a
harmful, chaotic, traumatising, dangerous place for people to

Tudalen y pecyn 46



FORM

PLATF

Continued

live, and is creating a pipeline of trauma. Rather than being a
safe space for people to wait for housing, in small numbers, it
is increasingly becoming a source of serious harm to people
both mentally and physically. It will become known as one of
the greatest policy failures in the 21 Century, in terms of
human and financial cost, if urgent action is not taken to
resolve it.”

There are, of course, other areas where capital investment would be
helpful. There will be arguments for transport improvement, road building,
and other worthwhile capital investments. Our argument is based on clear
evidence both as to the longer-term costs of trying to invest everywhere
all at once. There is no other capital investment opportunity that we can
identify, that meets the “maximal effectiveness test”, as well or as fully as
the construction of social housing. Ultimately, it is the guaranteed positive
impact of reducing temporary accommodation costs for local authorities,
that has led us to recommend so strongly, that most of the available
additional capital spend be allocated to social housing?.

We are aware that this is a difficult ask, and that is why we have made the
logic abundantly clear. This budget should be seen as a “spend to save”
budget. We are aware that it will mean Welsh Government disappointing
other stakeholders. We are aware that there will be a temptation to
allocate varying amounts of capital spend across different departments, or
even to allocate proportions of that to revenue spend. We cannot
emphasise strongly enough that the ability to develop and expand the
volume of social housing within Wales is one of the most impactful policy
levers available to us through our devolution settlement (Welsh
Parliament, Local Government and Housing Committee, 2024), realising
significant economic and social benefits and we desperately need a
government that prioritises housing.

Supporting regeneration led by communities themselves

If the need to build more social housing is our absolute priority for capital
spending, our second priority for capital spending would be supporting
regeneration of communities — by giving them the power (and funding) to
decide what their communities need and having the resources to build

3 We mean social housing with affordable rents, rather than affordable housing supply for
homebuyers.

10
Tudalen y pecyn 47



FORM

PLATF

Continued

that. We have made clear already, and in our submissions to Welsh
Government on their mental health strategy (Platfform, 2024), the
importance of addressing the social determinants of mental health. Our
communities must be places where people can thrive, connect and find
safety, and after the restoration of Welsh social housing supply,
community regeneration is one of the areas for investment that would
have a positive impact on our mental health. We need to create ways for
communities to work together, with the right support and funding, to tackle
the social determinants that are holding them back in their specific areas.
We advocate strongly for participatory budgeting in this approach,
restoring power to communities and ensuring they can make decisions for
themselves. Having a fund that is clearly community-led in all ways, will
also help restore a sense of agency and hope to parts of Wales that feel
forgotten about or unheard. We would encourage Welsh Government to
ensure there is a revenue aspect of community funding too, to ensure that
those communities that face the most barriers to their physical and mental
health have the resources they need to address the challenges in their
local areas.

Transforming the mental health estate

Whilst we believe that investing in social housing, and then our
communities, need to be the two priorities for capital investment, our third
priority would be for investment in a highly outdated mental health estate.
We explore further below, how we believe an overdue shift in our mental
health approach can provide better outcomes for people — but it is also
clear that the current mental health estate is not sustainable, nor does it
promote a sense of safety that allows people to heal and recover. The
Raising the Standard report from Mind Cymru (2024), references the
challenges raised to the physical environment in an inpatient setting from
Health Inspectorate Wales inspections in five out of eight hospitals,
including missing environmental audits, and environmental ligature risks.
Recent inspections identified baths and toilets not working, cracked
windowpanes, redecorating not happening when it is needed, and a lack
of evidence that ligature risk assessments have been followed-up.

We believe that a capital investment in the quality and safety of our
physical inpatient settings is critical if we are to begin creating safe,
healing spaces for people in distress, rather than retraumatising them,
creating further need for care. Whilst we understand that the Welsh

Tudalen y pecyn 48 H



FORM

PLATF

Continued

Government has begun work in this area, we would want to see this work
prioritised when reviewing the wider NHS estate in Wales, and we would
support Mind Cymru’s call for “a review into the mental health estate, and
to consider where improvements can be made in line with
recommendations from Health Inspectorate Wales and feedback from
patients”.

We cannot overstate the challenges of this environment. In England,
mental health staff are currently on trial for corporate manslaughter
(Independent, 2024) because of poor physical environments and the
impact on patients. This is the first time a trust is facing corporate
manslaughter charges over the death of a mental health patient, but there
have been several successful prosecutions brought by regulators, the
Care Quality Commission and Health and Safety Executive over mental
health patient deaths. We know NHS Wales mental health settings have
similar issues, and coroner’s reports across health boards have found
deaths related to ward safety and other factors (BBC Wales, 2023; BBC
Wales, 2024; BBC Wales, 2024; BBC Wales, 2024).

A report (BBC Wales, 2024) by the Royal College of Psychiatrists found
less than half of 84 recommended improvements to a hospital trust’s
mental health department have been made. In the past ten years, four
separate reviews have outlined changes to be implemented by Betsi
Cadwaladr University Health Board. Patient watchdog, Llais, said people
had continued to die during this time.

These issues are prevalent across health boards and directorate and
there are similar incidents reported across older adult, learning disability,
adult mental health and the children’s mental health specialities.

NHS Wales is carrying the same level of risk therefore, as the NHS in
England, and without urgent action this is a crisis that will continue to
escalate as it unfolds. We also explore further below on this note, how
alternatives to mental health inpatient settings are being piloted across
Wales, and how these changes will help address this historic
underfunding in the mental health estate, chronic under resourcing and
poor-quality care provision using a restrictive mental health model.

Tudalen y pecyn 49 2



FORM

PLATF

Continued

Address risks to the third sector

Tackling the National Insurance rises, and the increase in
National Living Wage

We have written as part of the Wales Alliance for Mental Health, to the
First Minister, in partnership with Cymorth Cymru, and DASU, asking for
an urgent representation to be made to the UK Government by the
Finance Secretary for the Welsh Government. The impact of the increase
in National Insurance will be significant, with organisations we have
spoken to reporting additional costs in the hundreds of thousands. That, in
conjunction with the increase in National Living Wage (which we
welcome), creates another wave of costs for the third sector to address.
At Platfform, we have made public that the National Insurance increase
alone will increase our costs by around £250,000 a year.

We are concerned that the same exemption that applies to the public
sector, does not apply to the third sector. Whilst smaller businesses and
charities are exempt, increasingly the Welsh public service delivery
environment has shifted — more and more local government contracts are
being delivered by the third sector, without the same workforce
protections, and at cheaper rates. We are working to meet statutory duties
held by local government, but without the same exemption in National
Insurance.

At the first stage, we hope that the Cabinet Secretary for Finance, and the
First Minister, as well as others within the Welsh Labour Party, will be
arguing on our behalf with the Westminster Government to see immediate
action on this. Otherwise, we know that any potential increase in funding
for social care, homelessness, or other areas that are in desperate need
for funding, will see that increase lost immediately on managing the new
costs of NI and the National Living Wage. We have seen yesterday (26
November 2024) that the Chancellor has ruled this out, and that the
exemption will not be applied. We are deeply disappointed with this
response, and we hope that the Welsh Government will use the
opportunities that are available to Wales by having the same political party
in Cardiff Bay and Westminster making the decisions, to call for this to be
rethought.

However, given the Chancellor’s response, we do not, sadly, believe this
to be possible. On that basis therefore, we must see corresponding
increases in funding for the third sector, to ensure that the additional costs

Tudalen y pecyn 50 w



FORM

PLATF

Continued

can be met without causing charities to lose staff, or close services. This
would then have a knock-on effect for the NHS, with increased demand
and longer waiting lists.

Longer-term, we hope to see with a renewed partnership between
Westminster and Cardiff Bay, progress on two/three-year budget
settlements, providing the third sector (and our local government
commissioners) the certainty and stability we need to plan delivery and
remain sustainable. We hope that this budget provides an opportunity to
set a two-year budget, avoiding the uncertainty that would be caused by a
pre-election budget.

We also set out below that it can still take local government a long time to
decide on any uplift given to providers, even after a Welsh Government
budget with clear and firm guidance given by the relevant Minister. We
would want to see this addressed in this budget and future budgets: the
time taken for the process to conclude has meant in some cases, uplift
decisions only being made by the end of July, over six months after the
budget was published. This continued delay, a long-standing feature of
government, places the associated risks firmly on providers, as we wait
for confirmation sometimes for months, and creates huge uncertainty
amongst senior management and that has a knock-on effect for our
frontline staff. We would want to see funding decisions made by Welsh
Government expedited, with an expectation that local government moves
as quickly as possible to pass uplifts on to providers. Every delay only
furthers the sense of uncertainty that the third sector continues to grapple
with, financially. Many of our challenges around staff retention, morale,
clarity, pay and progression, would be lessened with faster decisions that
are more clearly and rapidly communicated.

Protect Welsh innovation in housing support and
explore applying this approach elsewhere

Again, as with the capital investment that is available to the Welsh
Government in this budget, there is a need to be extremely focused on
what will bring the best results for Welsh public services over the
remainder of the Senedd term and into the next. Our response last year
(Platfform, 2024) made clear the impact that the cost-of-living was having
both on the people we support, but also our own highly valued colleagues.
We also drew attention to the work that housing support workers do, often
unseen, across Wales.

Tudalen y pecyn 51 H



FORM

PLATF

Continued

The increase in the Housing Support Grant last year (an initial rise
supplemented by additional funds from within the Housing Department of
Welsh Government) went some way to reducing that pressure, and we
were grateful that this need was heard, and acted on by Welsh
Government. However, whilst we understand the significant challenges
that local authorities are facing (as we raise above with our hope that
capital investment will focus on social housing as a national project), we
also do have to raise our concern that the uplift was not passed down to
housing support organisations at the same level, in all cases. The
pressure was eased, but as a sector, housing and homelessness charities
collectively felt that it was a crisis only just averted, rather than addressed,
essentially another example of “crisis maintenance”, as we described
above. We hope that the Welsh Government will note this for any funding
decisions for their 2025-26 budget, and act urgently to expedite any
decisions, and ensure as much as possible actively reaches the front-line
for services.

One of the aspects of the Housing Support Grant that we are proudest of,
is the ability to innovate, and work in a preventative way. This is
something that austerity made much harder. Whilst there was a belief that
we could innovate our way to lower-cost solutions, it has been clear to us
within the housing and support sectors, that austerity has made that
harder. By continuing to support the sector through this Grant, the Welsh
Government has allowed the housing sector some space to innovate and
explore creative solutions to housing crisis, such as assertive outreach,
Housing First, and others. We would want to see this funding continued,
increased and protected, and this approach adopted within mental health
services.

Making the case for housing support and wider
homelessness services in meeting the needs of a
struggling NHS

We recognise that the Welsh Government’s key priority, as stated by the
First Minister on several occasions (Independent, 2024), is to reduce
waiting times for the NHS. Multiple research reports demonstrate that
addressing homelessness can make significant savings for the health
service (Pleace and Culhane, 2016, and Pleace and Bretherton, 2019). A
widely cited, but no less impactful, Cardiff Metropolitan University
evaluation (Fury, Lynn Montes and Taylor, 2020) of the then-Supporting

Tudalen y pecyn 52 o



FORM

PLATF

Continued

People Programme, and now Housing Support Grant, demonstrated
significant savings of £1.40 for every £1 spent. However, it is also
important to flag that the same report identified a saving of £4.50
specifically for the NHS, for every £1 spent, when the specific areas of
impact are identified (page 68).

We want to make clear to the Welsh Government as they pull together
their budget, that the Housing Support Grant, and other related areas of
spend, have an outsized impact on the health service. In this way, it is
very similar to the impact that social care support has on patient stay in
NHS beds — often unseen by the public, but without it, the system would
very quickly begin to fall apart.

We would hope that the Welsh Government can prioritise the Housing
Support Grant for above-inflation increases in funding, so that local
authorities can continue to allocate services for people on the edges of
our society, who are homeless or at risk of homelessness. If this was to
happen in conjunction with a large-scale, historic investment in social

housing, the Welsh Government could realistically become the first nation

in the UK to drastically reduce homelessness in recent years — and that
would be a record to be highly proud of.

Tudalen y pecyn 53

16



FORM

PLATF

Continued

Supporting the development of safe, therapeutic, calm
environments that are an alternative to mental health
inpatient wards or attendance at A&E.

Moving from Tiered Support to a Community for Mental health
approach

A whole systems approach to Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Services

Multi-disciplinary/team formulation
Informed interventions

Clinic based/single modality interventions
Low intensity/manualised interventions
Book prescription/Self help material

Trauma/attachmentinformed early
years and education services

Families who have
the material and psychological
resources to engage in therapy,
parenting programmes and
self-help

"‘ y Community based Family Intervention
Services informed by psychological
formulation

Community based Multi-agency
Intervention Services informed by
psychological formulation

Our current model is based on a one-at-a-time, individualised clinic
approach which attracts long-wating lists, where delivery is slow, with high
financial cost, low sustainability, poor outcomes, and devoid of context
and relationships.

The limitations of the one-at-a-time, clinic-based, purely medically focused
model have been documented clearly in the Mind over Matter report
(National Assembly for Wales, 2018 and by the WHO and UN respectively
(WHOJ/UN, 2023). It is hard to access and by default our most vulnerable
families and adults are missed. It is a one size fits all that cannot
accommodate bespoke need or cultural sensitivities.

It is not a prudent use of resource to send people back to the
circumstances that made them unwell in the first place without making
any change to those circumstances. The recent Connecting the Dots

17
Tudalen y pecyn 54



FORM

PLATF

Continued

report (Welsh Parliament, Health and Social Care Committee, 2022)
made clear the links between circumstances and people’s mental health
here in Wales. This not only means we must address the social
determinants of mental health but that we must focus on interventions that
can also restore healthy attachment across our communities, at the level
of the family, our ‘blocks’, and the community more broadly.

To shift towards a more therapeutic mental health approach that is
embedded more in our communities than within systems, our mental
health system needs to be able to explore and innovate. We have been
working to do that as an organisation, whether by supporting other
organisations in their pilots, or through piloting our own approaches.
These ways of working, which are more focused on preventing harm,
avoiding interaction with inpatient care, and bringing support into the
communities where people live, offer very real hope for a way forward.
Critically, these interventions are cheaper than inpatient care and carry
significantly fewer negative impacts for people.

We explore these options, and some of the history, context and impact of
them, below.

Open Access Mental health Care: Crisis Houses

Platfform has been delivering the only two ‘Crisis Houses’ in Wales since
2005/6. Crisis houses are an alternative to inpatient wards or A&E,
providing support by trained support workers, in a more informal setting,
that people can feel safe in.

Crisis houses are part of a world-wide move towards community-based
care for people in acute mental health distress and more generally as a
mode of care and support across the spectrum of need. This model is
endorsed by the World Health Organisation and commonly referred to as
the ‘Trieste model’ after the town in Italy it first emerged from. Alongside
this emerged the Finnish ‘Open Dialogue’ approach which is a model of
mental health care that involves a consistent family and social network
approach where all healthcare staff receive training in family therapy and
related psychological skills. All treatment is carried out via whole
system/network meetings which always include the patient. This model is
being piloted with in Cardiff and the Vale UHB Adult Mental Health
services with great success alongside other transformational work as

Tudalen y pecyn 55 w0



FORM

PLATF

Continued

described here* by Dr Andrew Vigen, Assistant Clinical Director for Mental
Health. These ideas support the move towards a co-produced and more
democratic mental health system in Wales. Crisis houses are the UKs
early emergence of these ideas in practice.

The ultimate aim is to move away from entangling people in NHS hospital
services which are costly in resources, have poor treatment outcomes,
and also can further enforce a medicalised viewpoint of mental health
onto the individual. We also see from Mind Cymru’s report (Mind Cymru,
2024), a consistent concern about the quality-of-care within inpatient
settings, and patient experiences are not positive within these settings.

These include concerns about “coercion by staff, fear of assault from
other patients, lack of therapeutic opportunities and limited support”
(Staniszewska et al, 2019), the lack of activities to prevent boredom (and
associated risk of self-harm incidences, for example), particularly on
weekends (Foye et al, 2020), and others. Sky News in partnership with
the Independent recently created a podcast®, about the story of a young
mother and former GB youth swimmer, Alexis Quinn, who agreed to enter
NHS England psychiatric care following a family tragedy. In her words, her
three-day admission turned into a three-year ordeal.

Harm is exacerbated further by a lack of agency, overuse of force and
restrictive practice ranging from not being allowed to take entitled S17
leave for arbitrary reasons to not being allowed in their bedrooms during
the day, or only allowed patients access to decaffeinated tea and coffee.
The environment is also one where “established principles of inpatient
care, such as dignity and respect, collaboration and promoting patient
autonomy, tend to be implemented to only a limited extent” (Eldal, 2019).
The evidence for positive impact of mental health inpatient settings is
dubious, to say the least. The recent WHO/UN Guidance on mental health
legislation and practice (WHO/UN, 2023) raises significant concerns with
the use of restraint and calls for a shift in approach towards one that is
rights-based, person-centred, least-restrictive and with informed choice
and consent. The reality is far from that, presently.

Last year, we supported 211 people through our two crisis houses. 84% of
those avoided inpatient hospitalisation which is a huge achievement, and

4 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=DBCsf5T9EtM
5 https://news.sky.com/story/patient-11-podcast-13054441

Tudalen y pecyn 56 w0


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=DBCsf5T9EtM
https://news.sky.com/story/patient-11-podcast-13054441

FORM

PLATF

Continued

in line with other evaluated crisis houses internationally (see below). The
feedback from our crisis house residents is incredibly powerful.

“Helped me keep going through the darkest hours and has
allowed me to see my way through the storm.”

“I will never forget your kindness.”

“I now know that | can have a place to go if it's my last resort,
and not be taken away from my children.”

“I'm not naive enough to think | can be ‘fixed’, but | honestly
feel it's made me whole again.”

Beginning around the early 90s the ‘crisis house’ approach (Hartmann
and Sullivan, 1996) clearly demonstrated the positive implications of the
model. Only 20% of respondents reported a hospital admission since their
discharge, with 61% believing they would absolutely have gone to hospital
if this option hadn’t been offered. This evaluation did suggest that people
with repeated histories of hospitalisation had fewer positive outcomes,
which is a further indication of the traumatising impact those settings can
have.

A research review into the contributions of the third sector to mental
health (Newbigging et al, 2020) summarised the crisis house approach
impact as being more “homely”, and offering a “less fraught, with less
coercion and loss of liberty” than traditional mental health inpatient
responses. The review cites Sweeney et al (2014) who found that the
“therapeutic alliance” (the relationship between mental health professional
and ‘patient’) was stronger and more positive in crisis house settings than
on inpatient wards. They cite Butt and colleagues (2019) finding that there
were “improvements in mental health and safety”, and Croft and Isvan
(2019) finding that short periods of stay in respite care reduced inpatient
and emergency admissions “up to 9-10 days for each day of stay”.

There are mixed understandings of the severity of need experienced by
residents of crisis houses, with some (Johnson et al, 2018, cited in
Newbigging et al, 2020) positioning crisis houses as a “softer” alternative
that are less appropriate for people with “more serious” mental health
issues. This is disputed itself by a randomised control trial, cited in

Tudalen y pecyn 57 20



FORM

PLATF

Continued

Greenfield et al (2008) where comparing a managed crisis residential
programme (CRP) with four beds, to a locked inpatient ward with 80 beds,
“found a greater severity of ‘illness’ and lower functioning scores for
people in the CRP”. At Platfform, we have experienced, despite a highly
positive relationship with Cardiff and Vale Health Board and Aneurin
Bevan Health Board (the two commissioners for the Crisis Houses), a
focus on medium-level mental health issues for referrals to the crisis
houses we run, when we would also like to explore holding more
(perceived) complex people safely.

This is a critical point: organisations like Platfform (and others) currently
deliver supported accommodation and floating support across the housing
sector, working with people regularly in high levels of distress. Our public
sector trusts organisations like Platfform to hold people safe in these
moments, sometimes for months or years at a time, but that same
confidence is not yet held within the mental health system. One of the
areas we believe needs to be explored, urgently, is how to create more
crisis houses and other community-based care and support in Wales, and
to create the right conditions in partnership with health boards, so that
more ‘severe’ mental health issues can be accommodated within a crisis
house approach. Anything that reduces the human and financial impact
on people and the system, at the level we know the crisis house does,
should be explored actively and urgently.

We know it saves money. Whilst this area does require further exploration,
early indications (again, Newbigging at al, 2020) are that there are
significant financial savings to be made: Fenton et al (2002) found that
crisis houses provide similar outcomes to inpatient care, at a significantly
reduced cost; Bagley (2012) identified a £5.17 benefit per £1 invested;
and Croft and Isvan (2015) found a decreased use of inpatient and/or
emergency services, albeit for a time-limited period. At a time where A&E
pressures, ambulance waiting times, and overall waiting lists for elective
surgeries are causing significant challenges to the Welsh Government
and the NHS health boards across Wales, we believe it is a matter of
urgency that these evidenced alternatives to inpatient admission are
explored. The fact that there are only two of these in Wales, despite the
powerful emergent evidence dating back almost three decades, should
raise questions about the ability of our public policy system to embrace
much-needed innovation despite the strong support we have received
from our health board commissioners.

Tudalen y pecyn 58 ot



FORM

PLATF

Continued

Open Access Mental health Care: Sanctuary approach

Additionally, Platfform has recently developed, in partnership with Cardiff
and Vale University Health Board, a ‘sanctuary’ approach, which was itself
inspired by our Hangout, for young people commissioned by the same
health board. These two physical locations offer a safe, healing, and
therapeutic space for people in distress. In the case of the adult
Sanctuary, it can be accessed after calling 111 press 2, in Cardiff and
Vale. Our Sanctuary in Cardiff has already supported over 200 people this
year, who would otherwise have

Sanctuary models are, in a similar way to crisis houses, an alternative to
emergency inpatient or A&E admissions, or ambulance call-outs — but
rather than residential short-stay, this is a temporary visit during the
evening when other services are not available, which help reduce demand
on emergency services. Again, this approach saves significant resources
and cost to the NHS in Wales, and we would encourage other health
boards to explore how more of these spaces can be commissioned
across Wales. Sanctuary approaches are different to The Sanctuary
Model™ which refers to an organisation-wide trauma-informed approach
pioneered by Bloom in the 1980s, and aspects of which have informed the
development of Trauma Informed Wales and the accompanying Trauma
Informed Wales Framework.

Tudalen y pecyn 59 -



FORM

PLATF

Continued

A photo of our newly launched Sanctuary service — a welcoming, warm, therapeutic
space for people experiencing mental health crisis. Imagine the difference between
arriving here (we have a fundraised fund for taxi travel in an emergency) at your own
pace rather than at a ward, having been escorted by police, or picked up in an
ambulance with loud noises and flashing lights. A very different (and less costly!) mental
health system is entirely possible.

One person who has accessed our Sanctuary in Cardiff, Geoff, said:

“Everyone has been extremely compassionate, patient, and
understanding which has made me feel less alone, ashamed
and isolated.

just had a long and difficult conversation with my mother about
the lack of compassion and support I've had from both my
parents since | got back here and although she was very
combative, invalidating and demeaning, my talk with you
tonight helped me maintain a calm, composed, patient
demeanour through the whole conversation, avoiding all her
attempts to antagonize and trigger me into losing my dignity
and project her shame onto me.

| wouldn't have been able to achieve that if it hadn't been for
the genuine unwavering concern and interest, you showed me

Tudalen y pecyn 60 2



FORM

PLATF

Continued

and the challenges I'm dealing with. After the conversation was
over | concluded that | need to achieve independence, move
out and eventually go no contact with them as the damage
they've done is irreparable. | didn't have any motivation to get
myself together, and now I do. It will be unbelievably difficult
but if | stay here with them things will just keep getting darker
and darker for me.

I just wanted you to know that you've made a big difference in
my life.”

Open Access Mental health Care: Cardiff and Vale Hangout approach

On a similar approach to the Sanctuary scheme in Cardiff, is the Hangout
approach, specifically aimed at young people. The experiences of young
people in the mental health system is no less traumatising than it is for
adults, and arguably given the particular lack of agency and power often
afforded to young people, the impact can be much more significant.

When young people face challenges with their mental health, it can be
difficult for them to get the help they need, when they need it. Specialist
services have historically had waiting lists to access assessment and
intervention — unfortunately leading to the mental health of some
individuals deteriorating as they wait to access support. The COVID-19
pandemic has only exacerbated this challenge.

The earlier an individual can access the help they need, the more
effective it tends to be in preventing problems from getting worse and
potentially leading to a mental health crisis.

The development of local, easy to access early support mental health
hubs has proven to be an effective way of providing children and young
people with support when they need it. This is backed up by young people
in the region (Cardiff and Vale) telling us that this is what they need:
support when they need it, in a relaxed and non-medicalising /
stigmatising place.

Since opening our Hangout in Cardiff, over 500 young people have
visited, and the response from them and parents/guardians has been
overwhelmingly positive.

The feedback has been so powerful:

Tudalen y pecyn 61 2



FORM

PLATF

Continued

“l used to feel very anxious all of the time but this has changed
since coming to the Hangout and since then | feel much more
calm.” — (young person aged 11-13)

“l can see that the 1:1’s have helped a lot — when | pick her up
from the Hangout, there is always a noticeable difference from
when | drop her off. She seems much more calm once she has
been.” — (parent of a young person)

"Thank you for yesterday. [YP} absolutely loved it and is
looking forward to coming again! This is big news as he has
rarely left the house over the last year. You have a great
service there, thank you for being so welcoming.“ —
(Professional working with a young person)

"She has been referred to CAMHS multiple times and rejected
because she has ASD. The Hangout was the only thing we
found that was appropriate and accepting. She found solace in
The Hangout and was going daily for awhile over the summer.
We attribute her healing 99% to The Hangout. It's been an
absolute lifeline, especially as she moves away from sharing
everything with us and needed another safe outlet. It was the
staff and the art that kept her coming back." (Parent of a young
person)

Cardiff and Vale University Health Board have invested additional Welsh
Government funding to open a second Hangout in Barry, although due to
the limited nature of funding they were only able to commit to one year.
This is an example of a supportive commissioning relationship that is still
prevented from being as innovative as it can be, because of the
consistent challenge of longer-term funding and how that interacts with
capital investment and risk. For example, in order to secure a welcoming,
therapeutic environment that this model is entirely dependent on, a
significant capital investment was required from Platfform and CAVUHB,
and both organisations have taken a risk in investing, hoping that
additional funding can be found to extend this contract. If the contract is
not extended (and it only can be if CAVUHB have the resources to do so),
then both partners will have taken a financial hit from the capital
investment.

25

Tudalen y pecyn 62



FORM

PLATF

Continued

L fl &l.

One of the rooms in the Barry Hangout, which provides a safe, quiet and therapeutic
space for young people in crisis. Again, a very different prospect to traditional emergency
service responses.

Clinic to Community: Whole Public Sector Support

Increasingly, Platfform is also seeking to develop and invest in a way of
working that brings clinic-based skills alongside communities. Whilst this
has been tried before for primary mental health with group sessions on
managing stress, for example, what has not been tried on a significant
level is providing people high-level psychological support, and framing,
within community settings (also known as the open dialogue approach in
adult mental health) and crucially, community settings that make sense to
the people who live there.

That means working closely across public sector and community teams,
to establish where communities of place and trust exist, and ensuring that
mental health services and responses can situate themselves there. It
also means supporting psychologists from the Welsh NHS in building
community approaches.

For example, many of the community groups are held in buildings that are
owned by the NHS, or that can be hired out, and still often require travel
for people. They are chosen, largely, out of budget necessity, rather than

Tudalen y pecyn 63 20



FORM

PLATF

Continued

through consideration of which communities can be reached more easily.
This means that in communities that are more distant, or who have been

consistently let down by services, there is further disenfranchisement and
entrenched inequality.

Aneurin Bevan Health Board have explored ways in which a clinic to
community approach can be adopted, and they have considered not just
how to bring psychological knowledge and expertise to people who need
it, but to professionals that interact with them more often.

O cyp

0

/3

Partners -
2 O

Social workers

/ /C')'
Youth workers

Clinician .<.‘:Z>. 4—-}9

N N O

Sports coaches . O

<———> Clinician intervention

H Partner interventions

The diagram above demonstrates their community psychology approach
clearly. With traditional clinic-based psychology, a psychologist can see
one person at a time. This is a costly, and not hugely effective,
intervention. However, if community psychologists can support wider
networks of professionals to work in a more psychologically informed way,
offering advice, reflective practice, and sometimes step in more actively
when needed, the impact of community psychology can become
significant indeed.

ysgol Seicoleg Gwent
Gymunedal # Community
Board Gwent Psychology

Tudalen y pecyn 64 o



FORM

PLATF

Continued

Clinic to Community: Whole Community Support and Targeted
Trauma Informed Community Development

Working directly with communities themselves, as well as professionals, is
also one method of bringing clinic to community. In this, Platfform has
piloted different approaches, beginning with a partnership with Save the
Children, our Bettws Early Learning Community. Here, Platfform worked
with a group of parents to develop their psychological knowledge and help
them with skills to regulate distress, all in group sessions supported by
psychology.

The impacts of this are still being felt positively, and we know it has
prevented wider impacts of emotional distress in that community. Our
evidence to the Finance Committee is clear: if we can invest, as a country,
in sensible, evidence-based yet innovative community-based
interventions, we could start to reverse the financial burdens on our
system. However, we can only do that if the Welsh Government is willing
to take the risks politically, to invest significantly in prevention budgets and
in capital investments.

COMMUNITY
STRATEGIES

* Trauma-informed care

INDIVIDUAL
APPROACHES

INDIVIDUAL
SYMPTOMS

YA

Increased
well-being

for individuals,
families and -
communities

T COMMUNITY
. TRAUMA

Addressing Adverse Community Experiences Framework (Pinderhughes et al, 2015)

Tudalen y pecyn 65 28



FORM

PLATF

Continued

Taking these approaches forward

Given the high costs of mental health inpatient wards (both financial and
in terms of impact on people needing support), which underscores the
need to move to community integrated care, we must explore these, and
other options that prioritise support and treatment in community settings.
We would encourage the Welsh Government to allocate funding to health
boards to develop pilots for these options, with an idea of creating a grant
dedicated to exploring preventative activity within the mental health
system, along a similar model to the Housing Support Grant. We have
suggested this be called a “Mental Health Waiting List Prevention and
Support Grant”, which health boards could use to commission community-
based preventative services like Crisis Houses, Sanctuary models, clinic-
to-community approaches, or GP cluster models. We understand that
Welsh Government have made different pieces of funding available, for
example, the funds that have allowed Cardiff and Vale University Health
Board to open the Hangout in Cardiff and then to commit to a second
venue in Barry. But these are still relatively rare exceptions to the
mainstream system responses. Without the support to pilot, at scale,
these innovative ways of working, the mental health system will remain
stuck in managing crises, trapped by the legacy of a Victorian approach to
mental health which is holding us back from offering the compassionate
approach we know we need to adopt: and critically, that we know are
cheaper, more effective and result in better outcomes for people
experiencing distress.

Conclusion

There is a real opportunity with this budget. The capital investment
potential to make long-term, long-lasting positive impacts on local
government revenue costs is a real opportunity to grasp a generational
crisis affecting our citizens and our public services at all levels, and for
future years. So too, is the opportunity to shore up the Housing Support
Grant, which is an ever-important preventative funding stream, without
which we would be experiencing significantly higher demand.

We recognise that the Welsh Government has multiple and serious
challenges facing it. There will be a temptation to stick to what has been
done before, with the security that this certainty provides. We know there
are not enough resources and sectors across Wales are all overloaded

Tudalen y pecyn 66 20



FORM

PLATF

Continued

with work. That is without even considering the hurt and harm caused with
the history of austerity and those impacts of policy.

Owning our story can be hard but not nearly as difficult as spending our
lives running from it. Blame is the discharge of pain. It is the inverse of
accountability. It will be easy to get stuck blaming Westminster, both
historically and even today. But if we simply get lost in that, we will miss
the opportunity to take charge and change what is within our gift.
Embracing our vulnerabilities is risky but not nearly as dangerous as
giving up on love, hope and belonging.

We understand that the budget cannot make everyone happy and in fact,
we expect that and have explicitly argued for that in our submission.
Whilst there must be an awareness of complexity, and there will need to
be compromise, if the Welsh Government tries to keep everyone happy, it
will not succeed in making the long-term choices that are needed, to
address deeply embedded, structural inequalities that are having a terrible
impact on our society’s health, wellbeing and crucially our hope. In 2010,
when austerity was first proposed, the then Chancellor argued that
reducing the deficit was a national mission, but it seemed to be a national
mission that resulted in few positives for the people of Wales, despite their
hard-won sacrifices.

In December 2024, we would love to hear the Cabinet Secretary for
Finance announce that there is a new National Mission for Wales: that
there must be a relentless focus on spending to save, in ways that benefit
wider society, and reduce costs that are currently making it impossible for
local government to meet everyone’s needs in the ways we all deserve.
This sense that our public services cannot meet needs is pervasive, so
anything that reduces costs for local government, increasing the potential
to do more locally, will benefit everyone, and crucially, will be noticed by
citizens across Wales.

We would welcome the Cabinet Secretary being clear with voters, that this
approach might mean that some sectors that expect to get resources may
have to wait a little longer, but that the relentless focus of the Welsh
Government will be on housing (to reduce costs and provide hope), on
prevention to save our NHS (by reducing costs associated with outdated
mental health interventions that inadvertently cause harm and create
further costs in the long-term), and on providing space to innovate new
ways forward for our mental health by connecting us as communities that
can thrive in the 215t Century.

Tudalen y pecyn 67 %



FORM

PLATF

Continued

We have a chance to make a generational change. Against the backdrop
of the hopelessness we have become so accustomed to in recent years,
this year’s budget provides the Welsh Government with a genuine choice
for the first time in over a decade. The decisions made for Wales in this
budget will set the direction of our nation in years to come. The old
proverb comes to mind: “Blessed is he who plants trees under whose
shade he will never sit.” We hope that the Welsh Government will sow
those seeds in the budget, knowing that future generations growing up in
stable housing, with supportive, compassionate communities and public
services that are responsive, offer dignity, and impose themselves lightly,
will thank those that had the foresight and courage to invest when they
did.

Stronger together. Healthier together. Heal together.

Submitted by:
Oliver Townsend
Head of Policy and Campaigns

olivertownsend@platfform.org

Tudalen y pecyn 68 -


mailto:olivertownsend@platfform.org

FORM

PLATF

Continued

References

Audit Wales, 2024. Affordable housing. Available at:
https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/publications/Affordable housing.pdf.

Bagley, A., 2012. Real-Improvement. Leeds Survivor Led Crisis Service: A Social Return
on Investment Analysis — Summary. Leeds: Real-Improvement

BBC Wales (Dearden, C., and Evans, D.), 2024. Neglect led to man’s death at mental
health unit. Available at: https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/ceq3jgpxw690

BBC Wales, 2023. Social worker raised mental health fears, inquest hears. Available at:
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-60853596

BBC Wales, 2024. Mental health tragedy lessons not learned — family. Available at:
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/c9x8wjOxlero.

BBC Wales, 2024. Wife’s call for review after husband killed by son. Available at:
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/crqgy96gq3v4o#:~:text=Daniel%20Harrison%2C %20
37%2C%20fled%20from,contributed%22%20t0%20Dr%20Harrison%27s%20death.

BBC Wales, 2024. (Dearden, C. and McCarthy, J.) Deaths blamed on health board
improvement failures. Available at: https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/crgqg8m20ex50.

Bevan Foundation, 2024. Nowhere to call home: Understanding our housing crisis.
Living in temporary accommodation. Available at: https://www.bevanfoundation.org/wp-
content/uploads/2024/09/Nowhere-to-call-home-living-in-temporary-accommodation-
2.pdf

Butt, M., et al., 2019. Do patients get better? A review of outcomes from a crisis house
and home treatment team partnership. Available at:
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/bjpsych-bulletin/article/do-patients-get-better-a-
review-of-outcomes-from-a-crisis-house-and-home-treatment-team-
partnership/915D1D7B0AD384FC8DD6E90C413464F9

Croft, B., and Isvan, N., 2015. Impact of the 2? Story Peer Respite Program on Use of
Inpatient and Emergency Services. Available at:
https://psychiatryonline.org/doi/10.1176/appi.ps.201400266

Eldal K., et al., 2019. Being recognised as a whole person: A qualitative study of inpatient
experience in mental health. Available at:
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/01612840.2018.1524532#abstract

Fenton, W., et al. 2002. Cost and Cost-Effectiveness of Hospital vs Residential Crisis
Care for Patients Who Have Serious Mental lliness. Available at:
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamapsychiatry/fullarticle/206200

Foye, U., et al., 2020. Activities on acute mental health inpatient wards: A narrative
synthesis of the service users’ perspective. Available at:
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1111/jpm.12595

Fury, M, Lynn Montes, G, and Taylor, H. 2020. Evidencing the Impact of The Housing
Support Grant in Wales. Available at: https://www.taipawb.org/wp-

Tudalen y pecyn 69 -


https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/publications/Affordable_housing.pdf
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/ceq3jgpxw69o
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-60853596
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/c9x8wj0xlero
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/crgy96gq3v4o#:~:text=Daniel%20Harrison%2C%2037%2C%20fled%20from,contributed%22%20to%20Dr%20Harrison%27s%20death.
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/crgy96gq3v4o#:~:text=Daniel%20Harrison%2C%2037%2C%20fled%20from,contributed%22%20to%20Dr%20Harrison%27s%20death.
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/crgg8m20ex5o
https://www.bevanfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/Nowhere-to-call-home-living-in-temporary-accommodation-2.pdf
https://www.bevanfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/Nowhere-to-call-home-living-in-temporary-accommodation-2.pdf
https://www.bevanfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/Nowhere-to-call-home-living-in-temporary-accommodation-2.pdf
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/bjpsych-bulletin/article/do-patients-get-better-a-review-of-outcomes-from-a-crisis-house-and-home-treatment-team-partnership/915D1D7B0AD384FC8DD6E90C413464F9
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/bjpsych-bulletin/article/do-patients-get-better-a-review-of-outcomes-from-a-crisis-house-and-home-treatment-team-partnership/915D1D7B0AD384FC8DD6E90C413464F9
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/bjpsych-bulletin/article/do-patients-get-better-a-review-of-outcomes-from-a-crisis-house-and-home-treatment-team-partnership/915D1D7B0AD384FC8DD6E90C413464F9
https://psychiatryonline.org/doi/10.1176/appi.ps.201400266
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/01612840.2018.1524532#abstract
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamapsychiatry/fullarticle/206200
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1111/jpm.12595
https://www.taipawb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Road-Map-Back-the-Bill-A-route-for-the-right-to-adequate-housing-in-Wales-16.pdf

FORM

PLATF

Continued

content/uploads/2024/06/Road-Map-Back-the-Bill-A-route-for-the-right-to-adequate-
housing-in-Wales-16.pdf

Greenfield TK, et al. 2008. A Randomized Trial of a Mental Health Consumer-Managed
Alternative to Civil Commitment for Acute Psychiatric Crisis. Available at:
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1007/s10464-008-9180-1

Hartmann, D., and Sullivan, P. Families in Society: The Journal of Contemporary Human
Sciences. 1996.

Independent, 2024. (Thompson, G.) Welsh First Minister promises to tackle NHS waiting
lists. Available at: https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/uk-government-first-minister-
welsh-nhs-welsh-government-
b2614437.html#:~:text=The%20new%20First%20Minister%200f%20Wales%20has%20p
ledged,revealed%20her%20priorities%20for%20the %20next%20two%20years.

Independent (Thomas, R.), 2024. NHS hospital and manager to stand trial for
manslaughter of 22-year-old woman. Available at:
https://www.independent.co.uk/news/health/alice-figueiredo-nhs-north-east-london-
hospital-manslaughter-b2634808.html

Johnson, P. Institute for Fiscal Studies., October 2024. Autumn Budget 2024 initial IFS
response. Available at: https://ifs.org.uk/articles/autumn-budget-2024-initial-ifs-response

Johnson, S, et al., 2018. In-patient and residential alternatives to standard acute
psychiatric wards in England. Available at: https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/the-
british-journal-of-psychiatry/article/inpatient-and-residential-alternatives-to-standard-
acute-psychiatric-wards-in-england/BF31D6D07AE58F9782B00DE2C7C496AD

Mind Cymru, 2024. Raising the Standard: Improving inpatient mental health care in
Wales. Available at:
https://www.mind.org.uk/media/sOxpdt3x/raisingthestandard report 2024 eng-final.pdf.

National Assembly for Wales. Children, Young People and Education Committee, 2018.
Mind over matter: A report on the step change needed in emotional and mental health
support for children and young people in Wales. Available at: senedd.wales/laid
documents/cr-ld11522/cr-1d11522-e.pdf

Newbigging K, Rees J, Ince R, Mohan J, Joseph D, Ashman M, et al. The contribution of
the voluntary sector to mental health crisis care: a mixed-methods study. Health Serv
Deliv Res 2020;8(29).

Pinderhughes H, Davis R, Williams M. (2015). Adverse Community Experiences and
Resilience A Framework for Addressing and Preventing Community Trauma. Prevention
Institute, Oakland CA

Platfform, 2020. Our Manifesto for Change. Available at: https://platfform.org/wp-
content/uploads/2023/02/Manifesto-for-Change.pdf

Platfform, 2023. Finance Committee Consultation: Welsh Government Draft Budget
2024-25. Available at: https://platfform.org/policy-and-influence/finance-committee-welsh-

government-2024-2025-draft-budget-response/.

Tudalen y pecyn 70 >


https://www.taipawb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Road-Map-Back-the-Bill-A-route-for-the-right-to-adequate-housing-in-Wales-16.pdf
https://www.taipawb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Road-Map-Back-the-Bill-A-route-for-the-right-to-adequate-housing-in-Wales-16.pdf
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1007/s10464-008-9180-1
https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/uk-government-first-minister-welsh-nhs-welsh-government-b2614437.html#:~:text=The%20new%20First%20Minister%20of%20Wales%20has%20pledged,revealed%20her%20priorities%20for%20the%20next%20two%20years.
https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/uk-government-first-minister-welsh-nhs-welsh-government-b2614437.html#:~:text=The%20new%20First%20Minister%20of%20Wales%20has%20pledged,revealed%20her%20priorities%20for%20the%20next%20two%20years.
https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/uk-government-first-minister-welsh-nhs-welsh-government-b2614437.html#:~:text=The%20new%20First%20Minister%20of%20Wales%20has%20pledged,revealed%20her%20priorities%20for%20the%20next%20two%20years.
https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/uk-government-first-minister-welsh-nhs-welsh-government-b2614437.html#:~:text=The%20new%20First%20Minister%20of%20Wales%20has%20pledged,revealed%20her%20priorities%20for%20the%20next%20two%20years.
https://www.independent.co.uk/news/health/alice-figueiredo-nhs-north-east-london-hospital-manslaughter-b2634808.html
https://www.independent.co.uk/news/health/alice-figueiredo-nhs-north-east-london-hospital-manslaughter-b2634808.html
https://ifs.org.uk/articles/autumn-budget-2024-initial-ifs-response
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/the-british-journal-of-psychiatry/article/inpatient-and-residential-alternatives-to-standard-acute-psychiatric-wards-in-england/BF31D6D07AE58F9782B00DE2C7C496AD
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/the-british-journal-of-psychiatry/article/inpatient-and-residential-alternatives-to-standard-acute-psychiatric-wards-in-england/BF31D6D07AE58F9782B00DE2C7C496AD
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/the-british-journal-of-psychiatry/article/inpatient-and-residential-alternatives-to-standard-acute-psychiatric-wards-in-england/BF31D6D07AE58F9782B00DE2C7C496AD
https://www.mind.org.uk/media/s0xpdt3x/raisingthestandard_report_2024_eng-final.pdf
https://senedd.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld11522/cr-ld11522-e.pdf
https://senedd.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld11522/cr-ld11522-e.pdf
https://platfform.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Manifesto-for-Change.pdf
https://platfform.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Manifesto-for-Change.pdf
https://platfform.org/policy-and-influence/finance-committee-welsh-government-2024-2025-draft-budget-response/
https://platfform.org/policy-and-influence/finance-committee-welsh-government-2024-2025-draft-budget-response/

FORM

PLATF

Continued

Platfform, 2024. Welsh Government’s draft Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy: our
response. Available at: https://platfform.org/policy-and-influence/mental-health-wellbeing-
draft-strategy-response/

Pleace, N., and Bretherton, J., 2019. The cost effectiveness of Housing First in England.
Available at:

https://eprints.whiterose.ac.uk/145440/1/The cost effectiveness of Housing First in E
ngland March 2019.pdf.

Pleace, N., and Culhane, D., 2016. Better than Cure? Testing the case for Enhancing
Prevention of Single Homelessness in England. Available at:
https://eprints.whiterose.ac.uk/106641/1/Better than cure Testing the case for enhan
cing prevention of single homelessness in England FINAL FULL REPORT 2.pdf.

Shelter Cymru, 2024. The Cost of Crisis: The Impact of Wales’ Reliance on Temporary
Accommodation. Available at: https://www.bevanfoundation.org/wp-
content/uploads/2024/09/Nowhere-to-call-home-living-in-temporary-accommodation-

2.pdf

Staniszewska et al., 2019. Experiences of in-patient mental health services: systematic
review. Available at: https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/the-british-journal-of-
psychiatry/article/experiences-of-inpatient-mental-health-services-systematic-
review/C5459A372B8423BA328B4B6F05D 10914

Sweeney, A., et al., 2014. The Relationship between Therapeutic Alliance and Service
User Satisfaction in Mental Health Inpatient Wards and Crisis House Alternatives: A
Cross-Sectional Study. Available at:
https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0100153

Tai Pawb, 2024. Back the Bill: A route for the right to adequate housing in Wales.
Available at: https://www.taipawb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Road-Map-Back-the-
Bill-A-route-for-the-right-to-adequate-housing-in-Wales-16.pdf

Welsh Parliament: Health and Social Care Committee. 2022. Connecting the dots:
tackling mental health inequalities in Wales. Available at:
https://senedd.wales/committees/health-and-social-care-committee/connecting-the-dots-
tackling-mental-health-inequalities-in-wales/.

Welsh Parliament: Local Government and Housing Committee, 2024. Social Housing
Supply. Available at: https://senedd.wales/media/xxndldwa/cr-ld16800-e.pdf

WHO/UN, 2023. Mental health, human rights and legislation: guidance and practice.
Available at: https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789240080737

34
Tudalen y pecyn 71


https://platfform.org/policy-and-influence/mental-health-wellbeing-draft-strategy-response/
https://platfform.org/policy-and-influence/mental-health-wellbeing-draft-strategy-response/
https://eprints.whiterose.ac.uk/145440/1/The_cost_effectiveness_of_Housing_First_in_England_March_2019.pdf
https://eprints.whiterose.ac.uk/145440/1/The_cost_effectiveness_of_Housing_First_in_England_March_2019.pdf
https://eprints.whiterose.ac.uk/106641/1/Better_than_cure_Testing_the_case_for_enhancing_prevention_of_single_homelessness_in_England_FINAL_FULL_REPORT_2.pdf
https://eprints.whiterose.ac.uk/106641/1/Better_than_cure_Testing_the_case_for_enhancing_prevention_of_single_homelessness_in_England_FINAL_FULL_REPORT_2.pdf
https://www.bevanfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/Nowhere-to-call-home-living-in-temporary-accommodation-2.pdf
https://www.bevanfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/Nowhere-to-call-home-living-in-temporary-accommodation-2.pdf
https://www.bevanfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/Nowhere-to-call-home-living-in-temporary-accommodation-2.pdf
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/the-british-journal-of-psychiatry/article/experiences-of-inpatient-mental-health-services-systematic-review/C5459A372B8423BA328B4B6F05D10914
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/the-british-journal-of-psychiatry/article/experiences-of-inpatient-mental-health-services-systematic-review/C5459A372B8423BA328B4B6F05D10914
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/the-british-journal-of-psychiatry/article/experiences-of-inpatient-mental-health-services-systematic-review/C5459A372B8423BA328B4B6F05D10914
https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0100153
https://www.taipawb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Road-Map-Back-the-Bill-A-route-for-the-right-to-adequate-housing-in-Wales-16.pdf
https://www.taipawb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Road-Map-Back-the-Bill-A-route-for-the-right-to-adequate-housing-in-Wales-16.pdf
https://senedd.wales/committees/health-and-social-care-committee/connecting-the-dots-tackling-mental-health-inequalities-in-wales/
https://senedd.wales/committees/health-and-social-care-committee/connecting-the-dots-tackling-mental-health-inequalities-in-wales/
https://senedd.wales/media/xxndldwa/cr-ld16800-e.pdf
https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789240080737

Papur 5 / Paper 5

Dr Chris Llewelyn
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive

Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru
Welsh Local Government Association

Un Rhodfa'r Gamlas One Canal Parade
Heol Dumballs Dumbealls Road
Caerdydd Cardiff

CF105BF CF105BF

Ffon: 02920 468680 Tel: 02920 468680

Ein Cyf/ Our Ref: PWLGH241129

Date: 29" November 2024

Please ask for: Paula Walters, Interim Head of Corporate Policy and Services
Direct line: 07818 198461

Email: paula.walters@wlga.gov.uk

John Griffiths MS

Chair of the Local Government and Housing Committee
The Welsh Parliament

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1SN

Dear Mr Griffiths

Thank you for the opportunity for the WLGA to give evidence to the Committee’s
Inquiry into the role governance and accountability of community and town councils in
Wales. | am pleased to provide you with the following response to the questions you
sent to me on 18" November 2024,

How does the Chief Digital Officer for local government work with community
and town councils, and what resource and capacity needs have been identified?

The role of the Chief Digital Officer (CDO) for local government in Wales is to provide
strategic leadership on the digital agenda for local government. This role involves
representing local government and championing its digital ambition. Due to the
breadth of this focus, the CDO has not had the opportunity to work with community
and town councils in Wales to any great extent to date.

The Welsh Government (WG) funded a research project in Autumn 2022 that analysed
the digital capacity and capability of the community and town council sector in Wales.
The CDO was asked by WG to oversee delivery of the project via a private sector
research organisation. This project led to the creation of the community and town
council digital health action plan, which aims to maintain and improve sector progress.

Tudalen y pecyn 72


https://www.gov.wales/written-statement-digital-health-community-and-town-councils
https://www.gov.wales/written-statement-digital-health-community-and-town-councils

To support delivery of the plan, the CDO has provided a senior member from their
office to work with the project board. The project board, which meets on a quarterly
basis, is chaired by the One Voice Wales (OVW) Chief Executive. OVW is the principal
organisation for supporting community and town councils in Wales. Other than this
support, there is currently no direct involvement in the sector from the CDO or their
office.

Organisations like One Voice Wales (OVW) and the Society for Local Council Clerks
(SLCC) play a crucial role in supporting community and town councils. These
organisations provide essential resources and guidance to enhance digital capacity
and capability.

Is there sufficient support and resource for community councils to improve their
digital and IT capacity, and whether it should be a priority for this tier of
Government?

Most community councils have low to very low levels of digital maturity, particularly in
use of cloud-based ICT services to support the democratic process. Based on the
experience of the action plan project board, it appears there is insufficient support and
resources available to community councils to materially improve.

In addressing the digital challenges faced by the community sector, it is essential to
recognise that local government alone cannot provide the solution and the sector has
numerous pressures to face in terms of implementing digital transformation. Instead,
a collaborative approach involving various organisations and stakeholders, led by a
suitably financed and digitally upskilled OVW, is necessary to drive meaningful
progress. A well procured and managed private sector will need to play a significant
part in delivering the required improvement.

Whether there is sufficient data collated on diversity within the community
council sector, and on how local authorities are working with community
councils to improve availability and quality of such data.

The Welsh Government, with the support of Data Cymru, carried out of a survey of
candidates for the local government elections in 2017 and 2022. Data Cymru manages
the survey which holds information at a national level.

The main aim of the survey is to provide timely information on the demographic profile
of councillors and candidates for both levels of local government. The intention is that
the survey will be repeated during each ordinary election to track changes in
councillors’ and candidates’ characteristics over time. The survey included a number
of unique identifiers which enabled Data Cymru to track the candidates that were
elected as councillors.

Croesawn ohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg a byddwn yn ymateb i ohebiaeth yn yr uniaith. wlga.cymru
Ni fydd defnyddio'r naill iaith na'r llall yn arwain at oedi.
wlga.wales
We welcome correspondence in Welsh and English and willtespond to correspondence in t
& aT’ h?3 @WelshLGA

same language. Use of either language will not lead to a del yu en y pecyn


https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-05/local-government-candidates-survey-2017.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2023-03/local-government-candidates-survey-2022_0.pdf

The survey was aimed at both County and Town and Community councillors and
candidates and asked a prescribed set of questions that included (but was not limited
to) questions about sex and gender identity; sexual orientation; language; ethnicity;
age; disability; religion or belief; health; education and qualifications; employment; and
the role of a councillor.

The response rate for the survey in 2017 was 18 per cent (1,701 responses) compared
with 12 per cent (1,077 responses) in 2022. The 2022 report accounts for this drop in
response as:

Firstly, a potential reason for this drop in response rate is that this year’s survey

was “digital first”, whereas the candidate registration is not in most local
authorities, and therefore not all candidates provided an email address when
registering. Secondly, after the COVID-19 pandemic, candidates may be
experiencing “survey fatigue” associated with an increased number of surveys
examining equality and well-being issues. Thirdly, UK General Data Protection
Regulations (GDPR) requirements (not yet in force in 2017) meant that it was
not possible to follow up and remind specific candidates who had not
responded; instead, only general reminders to all candidates could be sent.

We recently contacted local authority equality officers to find out if they were engaged
in any work on the collection of diversity data of councillors at a local level. We didn’t
receive a response from all 22 authorities but, from the responses received, it appears
that local authorities rely on the national data set.

Any collection, storage and analysis of diversity data at a more granular level would
need to be considered carefully to GDPR compliance.

Yours sincerely

Paula Walters
Interim Head of Corporate Policy and Services

Croesawn ohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg a byddwn yn ymateb i ohebiaeth yn yr uniaith. wlga.cymru
Ni fydd defnyddio'r naill iaith na'r llall yn arwain at oedi.
wlga.wales
We welcome correspondence in Welsh and English an,tmll respond to corres ondencej'n he
@WelshLGA

same language. Use of either language will not lead to en y p Cyn



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42 E |te m 6

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 75



E|tem 7 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 90



	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i rôl, llywodraethiant ac atebolrwydd y sector cynghorau tref a chymuned - sesiwn dystiolaeth gydag Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol a Thai
	Papur 1 - Llywodraeth Cymru

	3 Papurau i'w nodi
	3.1 Llythyr gan Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol a Thai ynghylch asedau cymunedol
	20241104 Letter to Cab Sec community assets (c)
	20241120 Letter from Cab Sec HLG to Chair re Community assets (cy

	3.2 Gohebiaeth gan Cwmpas gyda gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn dilyn y cyfarfod ar 14 Tachwedd
	3.3 Gohebiaeth gan Platfform mewn perthynas â Chyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2025-26
	3.4 Llythyr gan Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru gyda gwybodaeth ychwanegol mewn perthynas â'r ymchwiliad i rôl, llywodraethiant ac atebolrwydd y sector cynghorau tref a chymuned yng Nghymru
	6 Blaenraglen Waith
	7 Cydsyniad deddfwriaethol: Bil Hawliau Rhentwyr - adroddiad drafft



